
1 / 52

Application: VOICE Charter School of New York
Jen Pasek - 
2022-2023 Annual Report

Summary

ID: 0000000352
Last submitted: Nov 1 2023 09:50 AM (EDT)

Entry 1 School Info and Cover Page
Completed - Nov 1 2023

Instructions

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Each Annual Report begins with a completed School Information and Cover Page. The information is collected in a
survey format within the Annual Report Portal. When entering information in the portal, some of the following items
may not appear, depending on your authorizer and/or your responses to related items.

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page

(New schools that were not open for instruction for the 2022-2023 school year are not required to complete or

submit an annual report this year). 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the other tasks

assigned to you by your school's authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover page task,

please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2023) or you may not be assigned the correct

tasks.

BASIC INFORMATION

a. SCHOOL NAME

(Select name from the drop down menu)

VOICE CHARTER SCHOOL OF NEW YORK 800000061089
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a1. Popular School Name

VOICE

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of June 30th, 2023)

Please select the correct authorizer as of June 30, 2023 or you may not be assigned the correct tasks.

NEW YORK CITY CHANCELLOR OF EDUCATION

c. School Unionized

Is your charter school unionized?

No

d. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION

CSD #30 - QUEENS

e. Date of Approved Initial Charter

Jan 1 2008

f. Date School First Opened for Instruction

Aug 1 2008
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g. Approved School Mission and Key Design Elements

(Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools only)

Our mission is to develop every child into a caring human being, full of wonder, who can work hard to reach a place

where they can choose from many great paths that will lead to a life of purpose, happiness, and fulfillment.

KDE 1 PROFESSIONAL LEARNING COMMUNITIES

KDE 2 INSTRUCTION ACROSS DISCIPLINES

KDE 3 SOCIAL EMOTIONAL LEARNING

KDE 4 MULTIPLE INSTRUCTIONAL METHODS AND MODES

h. School Website Address

https://www.voicecharterschool.org/

i. Total Approved Charter Enrollment for 2022-2023 School Year

810

j. Total Enrollment on June 30, 2023 - excluding Pre-K program enrollment

802
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k. Grades Served

Grades served during the 2022-2023 school year (exclude Pre-K program students):

Use the CTRL button to select multiple grades to accurately capture every grade level served.

Responses Selected:

k

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

l. Charter Management Organization

Do you have a Charter Management Organization?

No

FACILITIES INFORMATION

m. FACILITIES

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2023-2024?

Yes, 3 sites
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School Site 1 (Primary)

m1. SCHOOL SITES

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year.

Physical

Address

Phone

Number

District/CSD Grades to be

Served at Site

for previous

year (K-5, 6-9,

etc.)

Grades to be

Served at Site

for coming

year (K-5, 6-9,

etc.)

Receives

Rental

Assistance for

Which Grades

(If yes, enter

the

appropriate

grades. If no,

enter No).

Site 1

36-24 12th

St.

Long Island

City, NY

11106

718-361-1694 NYC CSD 30 6-8 6-8 7-8
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m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1.

Name Title Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

School Leader Matt Kolman  School Director 718-361-1694

Operational

Leader
Thomas Ficeto

Director of

Finance
718-361-1694

Compliance

Contact
Thomas Ficeto

Director of

Finance
718-361-1694

Complaint

Contact
Thomas Ficeto

Director of

Finance
718-361-1694

DASA

Coordinator
Peter Cataldo

Guidance

Counselor
718-361-1694

Phone Contact

for After Hours

Emergencies

Franklin Headley ED/Principal

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co-located) space or in private space?

Private Space
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IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report for school site 1 if

located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection.   Provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of

occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in district space (NYC co-

locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of occupancy, and a copy of the current

annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on or after July 1, 2023.

Fire inspection certificates must be updated annually. For the upcoming school year 2023-2024,

submit a current fire inspection certificate.

If the fire inspection certificate is dated after the August 1, 2022 submission of the Annual Report,

please submit the new certificate with the Annual Report entries due on November 1, 2023. 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

VOICE CO 36-24 12th 6-8 Bldg.pdf

Filename: VOICE CO 36-24 12th 6-8 Bldg.pdf Size: 635.2 kB

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report

This is required, marked optional for administrative purposes.

VOICE Fire 36-24 12th Street School inspection 22-09-29.pdf

Filename: VOICE Fire 36-24 12th Street School inspection 22-09-29.pdf Size: 8.1 MB

     

School Site 2
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m2. SCHOOL SITES

Please provide information on Site 2 for the upcoming school year.

Physical

Address

Phone

Number

District/CSD Grades to be

Served at Site

for previous

year (K-5, 6-9,

etc.)

Grades to be

Served at Site

for coming

year (K-5, 6-9,

etc.)

Receives

Rental

Assistance for

Which Grades

(If yes, enter

the

appropriate

grades. If no,

enter No).

Site 2

37-15 13th

Street

Long Island

City, NY

11106

718-361-1694 NYC CSD 30 K-2 K-2 No
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m2a. Please provide the contact information for Site 2.

Name Title Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

School Leader Hakeem Mir School Director 718-361-1694

Operational

Leader
Thomas Ficeto

Director of

Finance
718-361-1694

Compliance

Contact
Thomas Ficeto

Director of

Finance
718-361-1694

Complaint

Contact
Thomas Ficeto

Director of

Finance
718-361-1694

DASA

Coordinator
Peter Cataldo

Guidance

Counselor
718-361-1694

Phone Contact

for After Hours

Emergencies

Franklin Headley ED/Principal

m2b. Is site 2 in public (co-located) space or in private space?

Co-located Space

m2c. Please list the terms of your current co-location.

Date school

will leave

current co-

location

Is school

working with

NYCDOE to

expand into

current

space?

If so, list year

expansion will

occur.

Is school

working with

NYCDOE to

move to

separate

space?

If so, list the

proposed

space and

year planned

for move

School at Full

Capacity at

Site

Site 2 NA No No Yes
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School Site 3

m3. SCHOOL SITES

Please provide information on site 3 for the upcoming school year.

Physical

Address

Phone

Number

District/CSD Grades to be

Served at Site

for previous

year (K-5, 6-9,

etc.)

Grades to be

Served at Site

for coming

year (K-5, 6-9,

etc.)

Receives

Rental

Assistance for

Which Grades

(If yes, enter

the

appropriate

grades. If no,

enter No).

Site 3

36-49 11th

Street

Long Island

City, NY

11101

718-361-1694 NYC CSD 30 3-5 3-5 No
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m3a. Please provide the contact information for Site 3.

Name Title Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

School Leader
Charlene

Martinez
School Director 718-361-1694

Operational

Leader
Thomas Ficeto

Director of

Finance
718-361-1694

Compliance

Contact
Thomas Ficeto

Director of

Finance
718-361-1694

Complaint

Contact
Thomas Ficeto

Director of

Finance
718-361-1694

DASA

Coordinator
Peter Cataldo

Guidance

Counselor
718-361-1694

Phone Contact

for After Hours

Emergencies

Franklin Headley ED/Principal

m3b. Is site 3 in public (co-located) space or in private space?

Private Space
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IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report for school site 3 if

located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection.   Provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of

occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in district space (NYC co-

locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of occupancy, and a copy of the current

annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on or after July 1, 2023.

Fire inspection certificates must be updated annually. For the upcoming school year 2023-2024,

submit a current fire inspection certificate.

If the fire inspection certificate is dated after the August 1, 2022 submission of the Annual Report,

please submit the new certificate with the Annual Report entries due on November 1, 2023. 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

VOICE New Bldg CO 36-49 11th St 3-5 Building.pdf

Filename: VOICE New Bldg CO 36-49 11th St 3-5 Building.pdf Size: 180.8 kB

Site 3 Fire Inspection Report

This is required, marked optional for administrative purposes.

VOICE 36-49 11th Street School inspection 22-09-29.pdf

Filename: VOICE 36-49 11th Street School inspection 22-09-29.pdf Size: 8.4 MB

n. List of owned, rented, leased facilities not used to educate students

Separate by semi-colon (;)

N/A

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2022-2023 SCHOOL YEAR
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o. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2022-2023 school year? (Please include

approved or pending material and non-material charter revisions).

Please note, listing the revisions here does not constitute a request. Schools are advised to seek revision requests

through their authorizer directly.

Yes

o2. Summary of Charter Revisions

Category (Select

Best Description)

Specific Revision

(150 word limit)

Date Approved by

BOT (if applicable)

Date Approved by

Authorizer (if

applicable)

1
Change in mission,

vision or philosophy

Updated mission

statement
8/24/2022 06/01/2023

2

Change in

organizational

structure

Updates to

organzational chart
8/24/2022 06/01/2023

3

Change in discipline

or code of conduct

policy

Updates to discipline

policy to remain in

compliance

8/24/2022 06/01/2023

4 Change in Bylaws

Added ex-officio

seats for parent

association

representatives;

updated throughout

for compliance

8/24/2022 06/01/2023

5
Change in complaint

policy

Updates to

complaint policy to

remain in compliance

8/24/2022 06/01/2023

More revisions to add?

No
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ATTESTATIONS

p. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. (To write type in a phone number with an

extension, please use this format: 123-456-7890-3. The dash and number 3 at the end of the phone number

refers to the individual's phone extension.  Do not type in the work extension or the abbreviation for it - just the

dash and the extension number after the phone number).

Name Jen Pasek

Position Consultant

Phone/Extension

Email

q. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) below attest that all

of the information contained herein is truthful and accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with

all aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented,

that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our charter.   Click YES to agree and then use the mouse on

your PC or the stylus on your mobile device to sign your name).

Responses Selected:

Yes

As outlined in ENTRY 10:

Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) below attest that our

school has reviewed, understands and will comply with the employee clearance and fingerprint requirements

as outlined in Entry 10 and found in the NYSED CSO Fingerprint Clearance Oct 2019 Memo. Click  YES  to

agree.

Responses Selected:

Yes
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Signature, Head of Charter School

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

Date

Nov 1 2023

Thank you.

Entry 2 Links to Critical Documents on School Website
Completed - Nov 1 2023

Instructions
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Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required to submit item
5: Authorizer-approved DASA policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline Policy

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website. Please insert the
link from the school’s website for each of the items:

1. Current Annual Report (i.e., 2021-2022 Annual Report);[1]
2. Board meeting notices, agendas and documents;
3. New York State School Report Card;
4. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline Policy (For Regents, NYCDOE,

and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY); 
5. District-wide safety plan, not a building level safety plan (as per the September 2021 Emergency Response

Plan Memo;  
6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy; and
7. Subject matter list of FOIL records. (Example: See NYSED Subject Matter List) 

[1] Each charter school is required to make the Annual Report publicly available by August 1 and to post on their
respective charter school website. Each school should post an updated and complete version to include
accountability data and financial statements that are not or may not be available until after the August deadline (i.e.,
Repost when financials have been submitted in November.)

Form for Entry 2 Links to Critical Documents on School
Website
School Name:   VOICE Charter School of New York  
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Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required to submit item

4: Authorizer-approved DASA policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline Policy

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website. Please insert the

link from the school’s website for each of the items:

New York State Report Card

Emergency Response Plan Memo

NYSED Subject Matter List

Link to Documents

1. Current Annual Report (i.e., 2022-2023 Annual

Report)
https://www.voicecharterschool.org/compliance

2. Board meeting notices, agendas and documents https://www.voicecharterschool.org/compliance

3. New York State School Report Card https://www.voicecharterschool.org/compliance

4. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy and NYSED-

Approved School Discipline Policy (For Regents,

NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools

ONLY)

https://www.voicecharterschool.org/family-handbook

5. District-wide safety plan, not a building level safety

plan (as per the September 2021 Emergency Response

Plan Memo

https://www.voicecharterschool.org/family-handbook

6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy https://www.voicecharterschool.org/family-handbook

7. Subject matter list of FOIL records. (Example: See

NYSED Subject Matter List)
https://www.voicecharterschool.org/family-handbook

Thank you. 

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals
Completed - Nov 1 2023

Instructions 
Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY  
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The following tables reflect formatting in the online portal required for Board of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE
authorized charter schools only. These charter schools should report all Progress Toward Charter Goals as per their
currently approved charters no later than November 1, 2023. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked
optional for administrative purposes only.
Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals
PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Complete the tables provided. List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter,

and indicate whether the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all  goals no later than

November 1, 2023.

     

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The following tables reflect formatting in the online portal required for Board of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE

authorized charter schools only. These charter schools should report all Progress Toward Charter Goals as per their

currently approved charters no later than November 1, 2023. 
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2022-2023 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Student

Performance Goal

Measure Used to

Evaluate Progress

Toward Attainment of

Goal

Goal - Met, Not Met

or Unable to Assess

If not met, describe

efforts the school will

take to meet goal. If

unable to assess

goal, type N/A for

Not Applicable

Academic Goal 1

For each year of the

school’s renewal

charter term, the

percentage of the

school’s students

who score at or

above Level 3 on

the New York State

ELA examination

must exceed such

percentage for the

Community School

District (CSD) in

which the school is

located.

ELA VOICE CSD 30

Gr 3 31% 52%

Gr 4 39% 62%

Gr 5 25% 58%

Gr 6 42% 56%

Gr 7 50% 59%

Gr 8 63% 65%

All 3-8 41% 59%

Not Met

Academic Goal 2

For each year of the

school’s renewal

charter term, the

percentage of the

school’s students

who score at or

above Level 3 on

the New York State

ELA examination

must exceed such

percentage for New

York City.

ELA VOICE NYC

Gr 3 31% 48%

Gr 4 39% 53%

Gr 5 25% 50%

Gr 6 42% 48%

Gr 7 50% 52%

Gr 8 63% 60%

All 3-8 41% 52%

Not Met

Academic Goal 3 For each year of the

school’s renewal

charter term, the

percentage of the

school’s students

who score at or

above Level 3 on

Math VOICE CSD 30

Gr 3 39% 60%

Gr 4 51% 56%

Gr 5 26% 55%

Gr 6 46% 52%

Gr 7 56% 57%

Not Met



20 / 52

the New York State

Mathematics

examination must

exceed such

percentage for the

Community School

District (CSD).

Gr 8 63% 44%

All 3-8 46% 55%

Academic Goal 4

For each year of the

school’s renewal

charter term, the

percentage of the

school’s students

who score at or

above Level 3 on

the New York State

Mathematics

examination must

exceed such

percentage for New

York City.

Math VOICE NYC

Gr 3 39% 55%

Gr 4 51% 52%

Gr 5 26% 50%

Gr 6 46% 46%

Gr 7 56% 51%

Gr 8 63% 42%

All 3-8 46% 50%

Not Met

Academic Goal 5

Based on the

proficiency rates on

the New York State

ELA examination,

the school will

demonstrate positive

academic growth in

each year of the

charter term.

**The NYS Exam

was based on the

new learning

standards which

made the 2022-23

assessment a new

baseline

Unable to Assess

Academic Goal 6

Based on the

proficiency rates on

the New York State

Mathematics

examination, the

school will

demonstrate positive

academic growth in

each year of the

charter term.

NYS Math Exam

Growth
Unable to Assess

Academic Goal 7 Where the school

has an eligible

subgroup population

(deemed as six or

NYS ELA Exam

Growth -ELL

Unable to Assess
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more students) of

English language

learners, the school

will demonstrate

positive academic

growth on New York

State ELA

examination

proficiency rates for

that applicable

population in each

year of the charter

term.

Academic Goal 8

Where the school

has an eligible

subgroup population

(deemed as six or

more students) of

students with

disabilities, the

school will

demonstrate positive

academic growth on

New York State ELA

examination

proficiency rates for

that applicable

population in each

year of the charter

term.

NYS ELA Exam

Growth - SWD
Unable to Assess

Academic Goal 9 Where the school

has an eligible

subgroup population

(deemed as six or

more students) of

students eligible for

the free or reduced

price lunch program,

the school will

demonstrate positive

academic growth on

New York State ELA

examination

proficiency rates for

NYS ELA Exam

Growth - ED

Unable to Assess
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that applicable

population in each

year of the charter

term.

Academic Goal 10

Where the school

has an eligible

subgroup population

(deemed as six or

more students) of

English language

learners, the school

will demonstrate

positive academic

growth on New York

State Math

examination

proficiency rates for

that applicable

population in each

year of the charter

term.

NYS Math Exam

Growth - ELL
Unable to Assess

2. Do have more academic goals to add?

Yes
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2022-2023 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Student

Performance Goal

Measure Used to

Evaluate Progress

Toward Attainment of

Goal

Goal - Met, Not Met

or Unable to Assess

2019-2020 progress

toward attainment of

goal Met/Not

Met/Unable to

Assess During Due

to Closure

Academic Goal 11

Where the school

has an eligible

subgroup population

(deemed as six or

more students) of

students with

disabilities, the

school will

demonstrate positive

academic growth on

New York State Math

examination

proficiency rates for

that applicable

population in each

year of the charter

term.

NYS Math Exam

Growth - SWD
Unable to Assess

Academic Goal 12 Where the school

has an eligible

subgroup population

(deemed as six or

more students) of

students eligible for

the free or reduced

price lunch program,

the school will

demonstrate positive

academic growth on

New York State Math

examination

proficiency rates for

that applicable

population in each

NYS Math Exam

Growth - ED

Unable to Assess
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year of the charter

term.

Academic Goal 13

Academic Goal 14

Academic Goal 15

Academic Goal 16

Academic Goal 17

Academic Goal 18

Academic Goal 19

Academic Goal 20

3. Do have more academic goals to add?

No

4. ORGANIZATION GOALS

For the 2022-2023 school year, any organization goals that
cannot be evaluated due to school closure resulting in a lack
of data and changes in testing, surveying, and other usual
practices should be reported as “N/A”.
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2022-2023 Progress Toward Attainment of Organization Goals

Organizational Goal Measure Used to

Evaluate Progress

Goal - Met, Not Met,

or Unable to Assess

If not met, describe

efforts the school will

take to meet goal. If

unable to assess

goal, type N/A for

Not Applicable

Org Goal 1

Each year, the

school self-reported

average daily

student attendance

rate shall meet or

exceed the average

daily attendance for

the Community

School District (CSD)

of location for

elementary and

middle schools and

the citywide average

for high schools.

CSD and citywide

attendance rates are

not posted.

Unable to Assess

Org Goal 2

Each year, the

percentage of

students enrolled in

ATS on 10/31 of a

given school year

that are enrolled in

ATS on 10/31 the

following school year

will exceed the rate

of the Community

School District (CSD)

of location for

elementary and

middle schools and

the citywide average

for high schools.

BEDS Day Retention

Records

VOICE Retention

Rate from 2021-22

to 2022-23 was 79%

Unable to Assess

Org Goal 3 Each year, the

school will meet or

exceed any

applicable student

SIRS Enrollment

Data - ELL

VOICE ELL 28%

CSD 30 ELL 23%

Met
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enrollment targets,

as prescribed by the

Board of Regents,

for English language

learners.

Org Goal 4

Each year, the

school will meet or

exceed any

applicable student

enrollment targets,

as prescribed by the

Board of Regents,

for students with

disabilities.

SIRS Enrollment

Data - SWD

VOICE SWD 20%

CSD 30 SWD 17%

Met

Org Goal 5

Each year, the

school will meet or

exceed any

applicable student

enrollment targets,

as prescribed by the

Board of Regents,

for students eligible

for free and reduced

price lunch.

SIRS Enrollment

Data - ED

VOICE ED 86%

CSD 30 ED 70%

Met

Org Goal 6

Each year, the

school will meet or

exceed any

applicable student

retention targets, as

prescribed by the

Board of Regents,

for English language

learners.

SIRS/BEDS

Retention Data -

ELL

VOICE ELL

Retention Rate from

2021-22 to 2022-23

was 81%

Unable to Assess

Org Goal 7

Each year, the

school will meet or

exceed any

applicable student

retention targets, as

prescribed by the

Board of Regents,

for students with

disabilities.

SIRS/BEDS

Retention Data -

SWD

VOICE SWD

Retention Rate from

2021-22 to 2022-23

was 77%

Unable to Assess
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Org Goal 8

Each year, the

school will meet or

exceed any

applicable student

retention targets, as

prescribed by the

Board of Regents,

for students eligible

for free and reduced

price lunch.

SIRS/BEDS

Retention Data - ED

VOICE ED Retention

Rate from 2021-22

to 2022-23 was 79%

Unable to Assess

Org Goal 9

In each year of the

charter term, parents

will express

satisfaction with the

school’s program,

based on the NYC

DOE School Survey.

The school will have

a percentage of

parents that meets

or exceeds citywide

averages in Top 2

box responses (i.e.,

agree/strongly

agree, likely/very

likely). The school

will only have met

this goal if at least

50% of parents

participate in the

survey or if the

school meets the

reporting threshold

for NYC DOE School

Survey, whichever is

higher.

NYCDOE School

Survey - Parents

The average percent

of positive reponses

from the 22% of

families who took the

School Survey is

93% compared to

the NYC rate of

93%.

Partially Met

We will continue to

incentivize

stakeholders to

complete the

surveys and provide

valuable feedback

about the school.

Org Goal 10 In each year of the

charter term, staff will

express satisfaction

with the school’s

program, based on

the NYC DOE

School Survey. The

school will have a

NYCDOE School

Survey - Staff

The average percent

of positive reponses

from the 34% of staff

who took the School

Survey is 69%

Not Met



28 / 52

percentage of

parents that meets

or exceeds citywide

averages in Top 2

box responses (i.e.,

agree/strongly

agree, likely/very

likely). The school

will only have met

this goal if at least

50% of staff

participate in the

survey or if the

school meets the

reporting threshold

for NYC DOE School

Survey, whichever is

higher.

compared to the

NYC rate of 86%.

Org Goal 11

In each year of the

charter term,

students will express

satisfaction with the

school’s program,

based on the NYC

DOE School Survey.

The school will have

a percentage of

parents that meets

or exceeds citywide

averages in Top 2

box responses (i.e.,

agree/strongly

agree, likely/very

likely). The school

will only have met

this goal if at least

50% of students

participate in the

survey or if the

school meets the

reporting threshold

for NYC DOE School

Survey, whichever is

higher.

NYCDOE School

Survey - Students

The average percent

of positive reponses

from the 63% of

students who took

the School Survey is

80% compared to

the NYC rate of

74%.

Not Met
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Org Goal 12

Org Goal 13

Org Goal 14

Org Goal 15

Org Goal 16

Org Goal 17

Org Goal 18

Org Goal 19

Org Goal 20

5. Do have more organizational goals to add?

No

6. FINANCIAL GOALS
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2022-2023 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals

Financial Goals Measure Used to

Evaluate Progress

Goal - Met, Not Met,

or Partially Met

If not met, describe

efforts the school will

take to meet goal.

Financial Goal 1

Each year, the

school with meet or

exceed 85% of their

authorized

enrollment on 10/31

as recorded in ATS.

Approved Enrollment

= 810

BEDS Day

Enrollment = 751

93% of Target

Enrollment

Met

Financial Goal 2

Each year, the

school will maintain a

stable cash flow as

evidenced by having

60 days of

unrestricted cash on

hand reported in

their yearly

independent fiscal

audit.

Financial Records Met

Financial Goal 3

Each year, the

school will operate

on a balanced

budget. A budget will

be considered

“balanced” if

revenues equal or

exceed

expenditures.

Financial Records Met

Financial Goal 4

Financial Goal 5

7. Do have more financial goals to add?

No

Thank you.
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Entry 4 - Audited Financial Statements
Completed - Nov 1 2023

Required of ALL Charter Schools

ALL SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the financial statements and related documents in PDF format
into the Annual Report Portal and into the SUNY Epicenter document management system no later than November
1, 2023. SUNY-authorized charter schools are asked to ensure that security features such as password protection
are turned off.

ALL Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized charter schools must upload final, audited financial
statements to the Annual Report Portal no later than November 1, 2023. Upload the independent auditor’s report,
any advisory and/or management letter, and the internal controls report as one submission, combined into a PDF file,
ensuring that security features such as password protections are removed from all school uploaded documents.

PLEASE NOTE: This task appears as visible and optional task in the online portal until August 1 2023 but will
be identified as a required task thereafter and due on November 1, 2023. This is a required task, and it is
marked optional for administrative purposes only.

VOICE Charter School 2023 (FY23 Financials)

Filename: VOICE_Charter_School_2023_FY23_Financials.pdf Size: 459.8 kB

Entry 4b – Audited Financial Report Template (BOR/NYC/BOE)
Incomplete

Instructions - Regents-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

Regents-authorized schools must download and complete the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited Financial Report
Template” from the online portal or the 2022-2023 Annual Reports webpage. Upload the completed file in Excel
format and submit by November 1, 2023.

Please complete one spreadsheet at the Education Corporation level and submit the same spreadsheet for
each of the schools. 

EDUCATION CORPORATIONS WITH MORE THAN ONE SCHOOL SHOULD COMPLETE THE EXCEL
SPREADSHEET FOR THE EDUCATION CORPORATION AS A WHOLE, NOT FOR THE INDIVIDUAL SCHOOLS.
 PLEASE SUBMIT THE SAME EXCEL SPREADSHEET FOR EACH OF THE SCHOOLS.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only.

Entry 4c – Additional Financial Documents
Completed - Nov 1 2023

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must upload financial documents and submit by
November 1, 2023. The items listed below should be uploaded, with an explanation if not applicable or available.
For example, a “federal Single Audit was not required because the school did not expend federal funds of more than
the $750,000 Threshold.”

1. Advisory and/or Management letter
2. Federal Single Audit
3. Agreed-Upon Procedure Report
4. Evidence of Required Escrow Account for each school[1]
5. Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations

[1] Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the escrow account per school is
$100,000. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only.

VOICE 9
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Filename: VOICE_9.2023_ESCROW_Redacted.pdf Size: 188.5 kB

VOICE - AUDIT WRAP FY23 - Final

Filename: VOICE_-_AUDIT_WRAP_FY23_-_Final.pdf Size: 2.1 MB

Entry 4d - Financial Contact Information
Completed - Nov 1 2023

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter financial contact information directly into the
form within the portal by November 1, 2023.

Form for "Financial Contact Information"

     

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information

School Based Fiscal

Contact Name

School Based Fiscal

Contact Email

School Based Fiscal

Contact Phone

Thomas Ficeto

2. Audit Firm Contact Information

School Audit Contact

Name

School Audit Contact

Email

School Audit Contact

Phone

Years Working With

This Audit Firm

Marc Taub 14

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced financial services firm.

Firm Name Contact

Person

Mailing

Address

Email Phone Years With

Firm

Entry 5 – Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget
Completed - Nov 1 2023

SUNY-authorized charter schools should download the 2023-2024 Budget and Quarterly Report Template and the
2023-2024 Budget Narrative Questionnaire from the SUNY website and upload the completed templates into the
Annual Report Portal and into the Epicenter document management system. Due November 1, 2023.
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Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools should upload a copy of the school’s FY22
Budget using the 2023-2024 Budget Template into the Annual Report Portal or from the Annual Report website. Due
November 1, 2023.

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is self-explanatory.
Where applicable, reference the page number or section in the application narrative that indicates the assumption
being made. For instance, student enrollment would reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the
application narrative.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only.

VOICE Budget 23-24-AR-Template-NYSED - NYCDOE - 10

Filename: VOICE_Budget_23-24-AR-Template-NY_KBP8FEv.xlsx Size: 138.0 kB

Entry 6 – Board of Trustees Disclosure of Financial Interest Form
Completed - Nov 1 2023

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Each member of the charter school’s Board of Trustees who served on a charter school education corporation
governing one or more charter schools for any period during the 2022-2023 school year must complete and sign a
Trustee Disclosure of Financial Interest Form is due on August 1, 2023. Acceptable signature formats include: 

Digitally certified PDF signature (i.e., DocuSign)
Manual signature (1. download to print, 2. manually sign, 3. scan signed document to PDF, and 4. upload
into portal)

All completed forms must be collected and uploaded in .PDF format for each individual member. The education
corporation is responsible for ensuring that each member who served on the board during the 2022-2023
school year completes the form. 

Charter schools must submit the latest version of the form. Forms completed from past years will not be accepted. 

Trustees serving on an education corporation that governs more than one school are not required to complete a
separate disclosure for each school governed by the education corporation. In the Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form, trustees must disclose information relevant to any of the schools served by the governing education
corporation. 

M Cohen VOICE 2022-23 BOT Disclosure

Filename: M_Cohen_VOICE_2022-23_BOT_Disclosure.pdf Size: 458.0 kB

C Lamb VOICE 2022-23 BOT Disclosure

Filename: C_Lamb_VOICE_2022-23_BOT_Disclosure.pdf Size: 455.6 kB

R De Luna VOICE 2022-23 BOT Disclosure

Filename: R_De_Luna_VOICE_2022-23_BOT_Disclosure.pdf Size: 459.0 kB

M Guarini VOICE 2022-23 BOT Disclosure

Filename: M_Guarini_VOICE_2022-23_BOT_Disclosure.pdf Size: 458.7 kB

R Grassey VOICE 2022-23 BOT Disclosure

Filename: R_Grassey_VOICE_2022-23_BOT_Disclosure.pdf Size: 459.3 kB

Sari Biddelman VOICE 2022-23 BOT Disclosure

Filename: Sari_Biddelman_VOICE_2022-23_BOT_D_kmGMKrZ.pdf Size: 458.6 kB
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S Durant VOICE 2022-23 BOT Disclosure

Filename: S_Durant_VOICE_2022-23_BOT_Disclosure.pdf Size: 458.5 kB

M Karp VOICE 2022-23 BOT Disclosure

Filename: M_Karp_VOICE_2022-23_BOT_Disclosure.pdf Size: 458.7 kB

Entry 7 BOT Membership Table
Completed - Nov 1 2023

Instructions

Required of ALL charter schools
ALL charter schools or education corporations governing multiple schools must complete the Board of Trustees
Membership Table within the online portal. Please be sure to include and identify parents who are members of the
Board of Trustees and indicate whether parents are voting or non-voting members.

Entry 7 BOT Table

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only.  

2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information

for all --VOTING and NON-VOTING-- trustees.

     

Authorizer:

Who is the authorizer of your charter school?

NYCDOE
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1. 2022-2023 Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member)

Trustee

Name

Trustee

Email

Address

Position

on the

Board

Committe

e

Affiliation

s

Voting

Member

Per By-

Laws

(Y/N)

Number

of

Complet

ed Terms

Served

Start

Date of

Current

Term

(MM/DD/

YYYY)

End

Date of

Current

Term

(MM/DD/

YYYY)

Board

Meetings

Attended

During

2022-

2023

1
Casey

Lamb
Chair

Educatio

n

Advisory

Committe

e

Yes 3
07/01/20

22

06/30/20

25
11

2
Michael

Karp

Trustee/

Member

Educatio

n

Advisory

Committe

e,

Human

Resourc

es and

Talent

Yes 4
07/01/20

21

06/30/20

24
9

3
Richard

Grassey

Treasure

r

Finance

Committe

e, Audit

Committe

e

Yes 4
07/01/20

21

06/30/20

24
9

4

Christop

her

Doyle

Trustee/

Member

Educatio

n

Advisory

Committe

e

Yes 5
07/01/20

20

06/30/20

23
8

5 Marc

Cohen

Trustee/

Member

Admissio

ns &

Planning

Committe

e,

Finance

Committe

e, Audit

Yes 5 07/01/20

21

07/01/20

23

9
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Committe

e

6
Michael

Guarini

Trustee/

Member

Admissio

ns and

Planning

Yes 2
07/01/20

21

06/30/20

24
10

7
Karen

Valbrun

Trustee/

Member

Educatio

n

Advisory

Committe

e

2
07/01/20

22

06/30/20

25
7

8

Sari

Biddelma

n

Vice

Chair

Educatio

n

Advisory

Committe

e

Yes 2
07/01/20

22

06/30/20

25
9

9
Susheel

Kurien

Trustee/

Member
Music Yes 2 7/1/2020

6/30/202

3
9

1a. Are there more than 9 members of the Board of Trustees?

Yes
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1b. Board Member Information

Trustee

Name

Trustee

Email

Address

Position

on the

Board

Committe

e

Affiliation

s

Voting

Member

Per By-

Laws

(Y/N)

Number

of Terms

Served

Start

Date of

Current

Term

(MM/DD/

YYYY)

End

Date of

Current

Term

(MM/DD/

YYYY)

Board

Meetings

Attended

During

2022-

2023

10
Sheila

Durant

Trustee/

Member
Yes 1

08/01/20

21

6/30/202

3
9

11
Sachin

Gujral

Trustee/

Member
Yes 1

05/01/20

23

06/30/20

25
5 or less

12
Christine

Papania

Trustee/

Member
Yes 1

12/15/20

21

09/01/20

22
5 or less

13
Robert

de Luna

Secretar

y

Admissio

ns and

Planning

Committe

e

Yes 5
07/01/20

22

10/26/20

22
5 or less

14

15

1c. Are there more than 15 members of the Board of Trustees?

No
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2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only.  

2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response relative to all

trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on June 30, 2023 11

b.Total Number of Members Added During 2022-2023 1

c. Total Number of Members who Departed during 2022-

2023
2

d.Total Number of members, as set in Bylaws,

Resolution or Minutes
11

3. Number of Board meetings held during 2022-2023

12

4. Number of Board meetings scheduled for 2023-2024

12

Total number of Voting Members on June 30, 2023:

11

Total number of Voting Members added during the 2022-2023 school year:

1
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Total number of Voting Members who departed during the 2022-2023 school year:

2

Total Maximum Number of Voting members in 2022-2023, as set by the board in bylaws, resolution, or minutes:

18

Total number of Non-Voting Members on June 30, 2023:

0

Total number of Non-Voting Members added during the 2022-2023 school year:

0

Total number of Non-Voting Members who departed during the 2022-2023 school year:

0

Total Maximum Number of Non-Voting members in 2022-2023, as set by the board in bylaws, resolution or

minutes:

N/A

Board members attending 8 or fewer meetings during 2022-2023

5

Thank you.
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Entry 8 Board Meeting Minutes
Completed - Nov 1 2023

Instructions - Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Schools ONLY 

Schools must upload a complete set of monthly board meeting minutes (July 2022-June 2023), which should match
the number of meetings held during the 2022-2023 school year, as indicated in the above table. The minutes
provided must be the final version approved by the school’s Board of Trustees and may be uploaded individually or
as one single combined file. Board meeting minutes must be submitted by August 1, 2023.

VOICE 2022 2023 Board Meeting Minutes

Filename: VOICE_2022_2023_Board_Meeting_Minutes.pdf Size: 2.9 MB

Entry 9 Enrollment & Retention
Completed - Nov 1 2023

Instructions for submitting Enrollment and Retention Efforts

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Describe the good faith efforts the charter school has made in 2022-2023 toward meeting targets to attract and
retain the enrollment of Students with Disabilities (SWDs), English Language Learners (ELLs), and students who are
economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress toward meeting
its enrollment and retention targets in 2023-2024. 

*SUNY-authorized charter schools

The education corporation must include a plan for the charter to meet or exceed enrollment and retention targets
established by the SUNY Trustees for students with disabilities, ELLs, and students who are eligible to participate in
the FRPL program. See the enrollment and retention target calculator to find specific targets.

Entry 9 Enrollment and Retention of Special Populations
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Good Faith Efforts to Meet Recruitment Targets (Attract)

Describe Recruitment Efforts in

2022-2023

Describe Recruitment Plans in 2023-

2024

Economically Disadvantaged

One of our primary strategies for

ensuring that our enrollment reflects

that of our surrounding

neighborhood is through a lottery

preference. VOICE has a

preference for applicants currently in

the Supplemental Economically

Disadvantaged Nutrition Assistance

Program (SNAP) whereby upon

verification, the student is pulled up

from lower in the list to fill one of the

designated SNAP seats. The

number of SNAP seats is set by the

board and is calculated to ensure

incoming students do not skew the

school’s FRPL percentage below

the target. The school discusses

meal programs at the open house,

on its application, and during tours.

Support is offered to assist families

in completing all necessary

paperwork to ensure eligible

students participate in the lunch

program and are enrolled in FRPL

programs if determined to be

eligible. To ensure that families are

aware of our program and have an

opportunity to participate in the

lottery, we conduct outreach through

Urban Upbound, Hour Children, and

the Boys and Girls Club of Astoria,

so our application can reach families

receiving their services.

In the 2022-23 school year, our

enrollment for ED students was 86%

and the local district enrolled 70%

ED students in similar grades. We

will continue with current strategies

in 2023-24 to enroll and retain the

three subgroups.

English Language Learners VOICE is located in a predominantly

Spanish-speaking neighborhood; as

such, we advertise in English and

Spanish. We also conduct outreach

at local preschools and private

daycare providers with multilingual

staff. Advertising and school

In 2022-23, we enrolled many

refugees throughout the year. 28%

of our enrollment on BEDS Day

were English Language Learners

while the local district enrolled 23%.
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materials are translated as needed

and translation services are

provided with sufficient notice. The

school contacts trusted service

providers of immigrant communities,

such as CHHAYA, to inform them

and their clients of VOICE. VOICE

provides applications to existing ELL

parents and encourages them to

reach out and contact families that

they know and inform them about

VOICE.

There was a large influx of refugees

who arrived in our community in

2022-23. From August through

February, we had many students

enroll on a consistent basis.

Approximately 150 students came

and left, but were replaced by 150

additional students. We are very

present in our community in terms of

partnerships with local organizations

and connecting families with needed

services. As families arrived as

refugees and utilized food banks,

the staff referred them to VOICE

Charter School. We enrolled the

students immediately and

connected them with necessary

services. As the families settled into

their lives here, many moved on and

many more arrived.

Students with Disabilities

VOICE’s direct mail advertising and

website highlight the multiple

supports we offer for students with

special needs. The school

advertises to special needs

communities. VOICE conducts

outreach to specialized feeder

schools and programs. VOICE works

with the intervention team to monitor

incoming students to ensure those

with previously undiagnosed

disabilities are properly diagnosed

and provided with services.

In the 2022-23 school year, our

enrollment of SWD was 20%

compared to the local district's 17%.
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Good Faith Efforts To Meet Enrollment Retention Targets

Describe Retention Efforts in 2022-

2023

Describe Retention Plans in 2023-

2024

Economically Disadvantaged

In 2021-22, ED students made up

84% of the student population at

VOICE. As such, our retention

efforts for the general population of

students are designed to serve ED

students. We have a school-wide

focus on using differentiated

instruction to engage students in

culturally relevant material that

fosters academic and social

emotional growth. Our music

program also provides opportunities

for enrichment that ED students

might not otherwise have access to,

such as participation in the school

musical or receiving audition

preparation. Our intervention

structure, SEL team, and strong

connection with families allows us to

provide robust support to ED

students, leading to strong

retention.

79% of our eligible ED students

returned in the fall 2022 from the

previous year. Given that we have a

significant population of ED

students, we have well-developed

supports for this group that we will

continue to implement in the

upcoming school year.

English Language Learners Efforts to retain ELL students are

largely similar to the general

population discussed above. In

addition, VOICE works to ensure

that families of former ELL students

whose parents have not yet

attained proficiency in English feel

supported in their native language

(through interpretation services) and

kept involved in the school

community (through events and

curriculum that recognize their

community’s contributions). VOICE

continually works to improve non-

English, non-Spanish speaking

parental involvement and linguistic

support. We also retain ELLs by

using culturally relevant instruction

81% of English Language Learners

returned in 2022-23. We have a

robust ELL program that will

continue in the 2023-24 school year

in order to support the retention of

this group.
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and curricular materials that reflect

diverse perspectives. Finally, our

music program is designed to

improve literacy and increase

retention for ELLs. By singing,

reading, and writing music, students

develop familiarity with common

sentence structures and learn how

to communicate meaning.

Students with Disabilities

VOICE uses the approaches of

Integrated Co-Teaching (ICT),

Special Education Teacher Support

Services (SETSS), and counseling

to provide an inclusive education to

all students. To improve the

retention rate of SWD, the

intervention team coordinates with

classroom teachers, parents, and

the CSE to ensure that the

mandates of each student’s IEP are

met.

The retention rate of our students

with disabilities who returned in the

fall of 2022 was 77%.

Entry 10 – Teacher and Administrator Attrition
Completed - Nov 1 2023

Form for "Entry 10 – Teacher and Administrator Attrition"
Revised to Employee Fingerprint Requirements Attestation
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TEACH ID Enter the 7 digit TEACH ID for the Faculty/Staff person.

Role in School Select the best choice of role of the Faculty/Staff person
from the drop-down list.

CPR/AED Certification Status Select the appropriate choice from the drop-down list.
Hire Date Enter the date that the Faculty/Staff person was hired.

Start Date Enter the date that the Faculty/Staff person actually
began employment in this school.

Total Years’ Experience in this Role Enter Total Years of Experience that the Faculty/Staff
person has in their current role.

Total Years at this School Enter the Total Years that the Faculty/Staff person has
been employed in this school.

Out-of-Certification Justification Select the appropriate choice from the drop-down list.
Subject Taught Select the appropriate choice from the drop-down list.
Notes Optional

VOICE Faculty-staff-roster-template-2023 (V

Filename: VOICE_Faculty-staff-roster-templa_DhFdImf.xlsx Size: 39.3 kB

Optional Additional Documents to Upload (BOR)
Incomplete
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
The Board of Trustees  
VOICE Charter School 
New York, New York 
 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of VOICE Charter School (the School), which comprise 
the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of 
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to 
the financial statements. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its net assets 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent 
of the School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter – Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement 
 
As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the School has elected to change its method 
of accounting for leases in the year ended June 30, 2023 due to the adoption of ASC Topic 842, 
Leases. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School’s 
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements 
are issued or available to be issued. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audits. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, 
no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain 
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audits. 
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Other Matters 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as 
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 
31, 2023 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
October 31, 2023 
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June 30, 2023 2022 

Assets   

Cash and cash equivalents $      1,942,725  $ 2,319,495 
Cash - restricted 70,000 70,000 
Grants and other receivables 889,935 1,157,219 
Investments, at fair value 1,006,250 1,374,332 
Prepaid expenses and other assets  1,603,127 648,844 
Right-of-use asset - operating lease, net 4,762,100 - 
Property and equipment, net 1,873,980 2,035,833 
Construction in progress 869,204 293,786 

Total Assets $ 13,017,321 $ 7,899,509 

Liabilities and Net Assets   

Liabilities   
 Accounts payable and accrued expenses $        312,975  $ 347,969 
 Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses 2,682,546 2,482,212 
  Operating lease liability 5,864,028 - 
 Deferred rent - 1,152,455 

Total Liabilities 8,859,549 3,982,636 

Commitments and Contingencies   

Net Assets   
 Without donor restrictions 4,157,772 3,916,873 

Total Net Assets 4,157,772 3,916,873 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 13,017,321 $ 7,899,509 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Year ended June 30, 2023 2023 2022 

Operating Revenue    
 State and local per pupil operating revenue $ 15,194,767 $ 12,806,249 
 Government grants and contracts 1,754,307 2,235,209 

Total Operating Revenue  16,949,074 15,041,458 

Expenses   
 Program services:   
  General education 13,350,143 12,540,395 
  Special education 1,723,723 1,801,488 
 Management and general 1,836,255 1,942,381 

Total Expenses 16,910,121 16,284,264 

Income (Deficit) from School Operations 38,953 (1,242,806) 

Support and Other Income (Loss)   
 Contributions, grants, and other income 97,052 9,354 
 Investment return, net 81,294 (12,280) 
 Interest income 23,600 1,697 

Total Support and Other Income (Loss)  201,946 (1,229) 

Change in Net Assets  240,899 (1,244,035) 

Net Assets, beginning of the year 3,916,873 5,160,908 

Net Assets, end of the year $ 4,157,772 $ 3,916,873 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Year ended June 30, 2023        

 

No. of 
Positions 

Program Services  
Supporting 

Services 

Total  
General 

Education 
Special 

Education Total Program   
Management and 

General 

Personnel Services Costs        
 Instructional personnel 78 $ 7,064,577 $ 1,046,246 $ 8,110,823   $ - $ 8,110,823 
 Administrative personnel 27 -    -    -     883,936 883,936 

Total Salaries and Staff 105 7,064,577 1,046,246 8,110,823  883,936 8,994,759 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits  1,966,471 79,999 2,046,470  282,305 2,328,775 
Retirement benefits  764,845 128,307 893,152  100,692 993,844 
Professional development  163,745  -  163,745  - 163,745 
Legal fees  10,321  -  10,321  66,976 77,297 
Audit and accounting fees  34,911  -  34,911  24,961 59,872 
Professional fees - other  968,024 165,550 1,133,574  156,185 1,289,759 
Other Contracted Services  55,333 - 55,333  - 55,333 
Student and staff recruitment  240,129 - 240,129  34,923 275,052 
Curriculum and classroom expenses  647,641 103,813 751,454  - 751,454 
Student field trips and incentive  
 programs  43,416 2,583 45,999  - 45,999 
Parent Activities  250 - 250  - 250 
Postage, printing, and copying  1,480 - 1,480  684 2,164 
Insurance  94,879 - 94,879  12,938 107,817 
Information technology  139,445 - 139,445  34,979 174,424 
Leased equipment  19,090 - 19,090  2,603 21,693 
Repairs and maintenance  266,004 47,313 313,317  26,674 339,991 
Occupancy and facility costs  545,163 120,574 665,737  107,528 773,265 
Utilities  41,126 - 41,126  35,300 76,426 
Depreciation and amortization  203,035 29,338 232,373  31,687 264,060 
Other expense  1,888 - 1,888  19,287 21,175 
Office expense   78,370 - 78,370  14,597 92,967 

  $ 13,350,143 $ 1,723,723 $ 15,073,866  $ 1,836,255 $ 16,910,121 
 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Year ended June 30, 2022        

 

No. of 
Positions 

Program Services  
Supporting 

Services 

Total  
General 

Education Special Education Total Program   
Management and 

General 

Personnel Services Costs        
 Instructional personnel 93 $ 7,020,375 $ 1,279,475 $ 8,299,850  $ - $ 8,299,850 
 Administrative personnel 29 - - -  1,022,923 1,022,923 

Total Salaries and Staff 122 7,020,375 1,279,475 8,299,850  1,022,923 9,322,773 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits  1,896,450 109,289 2,005,739  267,638 2,273,377 
Retirement benefits  469,763 115,237 585,000  131,763 716,763 
Professional development  413,772 - 413,772  12,877 426,649 
Legal fees  4,525 - 4,525  74,812 79,337 
Audit and accounting fees  26,400 - 26,400  32,434 58,834 
Professional fees - other  432,975 71,590 504,565  84,736 589,301 
Student and staff recruitment  197,183 - 197,183  6,120 203,303 
Curriculum and classroom expenses  560,174 76,877 637,051  - 637,051 
Student field trips and incentive 
  programs  11,184 1,377 12,561  - 12,561 
Postage, printing, and copying  1,889 - 1,889  722 2,611 
Insurance  74,467 - 74,467  10,155 84,622 
Information technology  208,447 - 208,447  41,498 249,945 
Leased equipment  17,529 - 17,529  2,390 19,919 
Repairs and maintenance  268,002 40,763 308,765  30,926 339,691 
Occupancy and facility costs  592,698 83,097 675,795  91,501 767,296 
Utilities  40,851 - 40,851  5,571 46,422 
Depreciation and amortization  217,946 23,783 241,729  32,963 274,692 
Other expense   81,640 - 81,640  80,584 162,224 
Office expense  4,125 - 4,125  12,768 16,893 

  $ 12,540,395 $ 1,801,488 $ 14,341,883  $ 1,942,381 $ 16,284,264 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Year ended June 30, 2023 2022 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities   
 Cash received from operating revenue $ 16,666,358 $ 14,287,682 
 Cash received from interest income 23,600 1,697 
 Other cash received 365,362 44,826 
 Cash paid to employees and suppliers (17,485,531) (15,894,052) 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (430,211) (1,559,847) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities   
 Purchase of investments (789,934) (828,797) 
 Proceeds from sale of investments 971,000 835,000 
 Purchase of property and equipment (102,207) (67,560) 
 Construction in progress (575,418) (81,103) 

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (496,559) (142,460) 

Net Decrease in Cash (926,770) (1,702,307) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash,  
 beginning of year 2,389,495 4,091,802 

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, end of year $ 1,462,725 $ 2,389,495 

Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Net Cash  
 Used in Operating Activities   
  Change in net assets $ 240,899 $ (1,244,035) 
  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets  
   to net cash used in operating activities:   
    Depreciation and amortization 264,060 274,692 
          Amortization of Lease 568,968 - 
    Unrealized loss on investments 187,016 47,752 
    Deferred rent - (32,580) 
    Changes in operating assets and liabilities:   
     Grants and other receivables (282,716) (753,776) 
     Prepaid expenses and other assets  (954,283) (47,173) 
     Accounts payable and accrued expenses (34,994) 220,654 
             Principal reduction in operating lease liability (619,495) - 
     Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses 200,334 (25,381) 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities $ (430,211) $ (1,559,847) 

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Investing Activities   
  Non-cash change in deferred rent – upon adoption $         1,152,455 $                         - 

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information   

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Cash - Restricted   
 Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,392,725 $ 2,319,495 
 Cash - restricted 70,000 70,000 

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, end of year $ 1,462,725 $ 2,389,495 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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1. Nature of the Organization 
 
VOICE Charter School (the School) aims to create a safe and healthy learning environment that will 
nurture, motivate, and challenge all of our children to achieve the highest level of academic 
excellence and to develop into mindful, responsible, contributing participants in their education, 
their community, and the diverse society in which we live. The School incorporates music into a 
rigorous academic program. On January 15, 2008, the Board of Regents of the University of the State 
of New York granted the School a provisional charter valid for a term of five years and renewable 
upon expiration. The charter was renewed for an additional 5 years on January 15, 2013 and March 
12, 2018 for the periods ending June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2023 respectively. On April 30, 2023, 
the charter was renewed for an additional 3 years for the period ending June 30, 2026. 
 
On October 3, 2008, the School, as determined by the Internal Revenue Service, was approved for 
Federal income tax exemption under section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) as an 
organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC. It is also currently exempt under a similar 
provision under New York State income tax laws. The School has also been classified as an entity 
that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the IRC and qualifies for 
deductible contributions as provided in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii) of the IRC. The School’s primary 
sources of income are government grants, contracts, and per pupil funding. VOICE Charter School, 
located in Long Island City, Queens, primarily educates children residing in District 30. 
 
In fiscal year 2023 and 2022, the School operated classes for students in kindergarten through 
eighth grade.  
 
2. Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The School’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(U.S. GAAP). 
 
The classification of the School’s net assets and its support, revenues, and expenses is based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. It requires that the amounts for each of the 
two classes of net assets – with donor restrictions or without donor restrictions – be displayed in a 
statement of the financial position and that the amount of change in each of those classes of net 
assets be displayed in a statement of activities.  
 
These classes are defined as follows: 
 
Net Assets with Donor Restrictions – This class consists of contributions and other inflows of assets 
whose use is subject to donor-imposed restrictions that are more specific than broad limits 
reflecting the nature of the not-for-profit entity, the environment in which it operates and the 
purposes specified in its articles of incorporation or bylaws or comparable documents. Donor-
imposed restrictions may be temporary in nature, such as stipulating that resources may be used 
only after a specified date or limited to specific programs or services. Certain donor-imposed 
restrictions are perpetual in nature. 
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Net Assets without Donor Restrictions – This class consists of contributions and other inflows of 
assets whose use is not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. This net asset category includes both 
contributions not subject to donor restrictions and exchange transactions, and are, therefore, 
available for general operations. 
 
At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the School had no assets with donor restrictions. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The School considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of 
three months or less to be cash equivalents.  
 
Cash – Restricted 
 
An escrow account in the amount of $70,000 was held aside under the provisions of the School’s 
charter to pay for legal and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution should it 
occur, as required by the New York State Education Department for the years ended June 30, 2023 
and 2022.  
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
 
Grants and Other Receivables 
 
Grants and other receivables represent unconditional promises by government agencies and donors. 
Grants and other receivables that are expected to be collected within one year and recorded at net 
realizable value amount to $1,439,935 and $1,157,219 at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The 
School evaluates the collectability of the receivables and employs the allowance method. The 
School has determined that no allowance for uncollectible accounts is necessary as of June 30, 2023 
and 2022. Such estimate is based on management’s assessments of the aged basis of its receivables, 
as well as current economic conditions and historical information.  
 
Contributions 
 
Transfers of cash or other assets or settlement of liabilities that are both voluntary and 
nonreciprocal are recognized as contributions.  
 
Contributions may either be conditional or unconditional. A contribution is considered conditional 
when the donor imposes both a measurable barrier and a right of return. Conditional contributions 
are recognized as revenue on the date all donor-imposed barriers are overcome or explicitly waived 
by the donor. Barriers may include specific and measurable outcomes, limitations on the 
performance of an activity and other stipulations related to the contribution. A donor has a right of 
return of any assets transferred or a right of release of its obligation to transfer any assets in the 
event the School fails to overcome one or more barriers. Assets received before the barrier is 
overcome are accounted for as refundable advances.  
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Unconditional contributions may or may not be subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Donor-
imposed restrictions limit the use of the donated assets as to time or purpose restrictions.  
 
Contributions subject to donor restrictions are recognized in changes in net assets with donor 
restrictions. When a purpose restriction is satisfied or when a time restriction expires, the 
contribution is reported as net assets released from restrictions and is recognized in changes in net 
assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.  
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Per-Pupil Revenue 
 
The School recognizes revenues from per-pupil funding in the fiscal year in which the academic 
programs are provided. Per-pupil revenue is billed and received based on the total number of 
full-time equivalent (FTE) students and the basic charter school tuition rate for the school district 
of residence of the students attending the School in any given fiscal year for general education and 
special education. The FTE is formula-driven and based on the number of days the student has been 
with the School as a proportion of the number of days in the entire school year (the calculation is 
done by using the New York State calculator online). The School’s total student population includes 
general education and special education students. The School has determined that revenue from its 
students has the same performance obligations, types of contract, and services rendered. As a 
result, the student body is viewed as one customer base for revenue purposes. The School uses a 
portfolio approach to account for per-pupil contracts as a collective group rather than recognizing 
revenue on an individual-contract basis. The School believes that revenue recognized by utilizing 
the portfolio approach approximates the revenue that would have been recognized if an individual 
contract approach were used. 
 
Per-pupil invoicing is managed on a bi-monthly basis to the funding source (local school district). 
Billing is a function of student enrollment for the upcoming fiscal year, which is the basis for the 
first two invoices per-pupil due June 1st and July 31st, which is a projection. Subsequent invoices 
are due bi-monthly. With the implementation of an automated-invoicing process through a 
dedicated website, the submission of each invoice is done online. After the year is complete, the 
School submits the FTE per-pupil reconciliation, listing every student who attended any part of the 
year, and the FTE each represents. Based on this final count, it calculates how much should have 
been paid to the School and included in the reconciliation will be any amounts due from the funding 
source included in grants and other receivables on the statement of financial position at year end, 
or any amounts payable to the funding source included as a liability on the statement of financial 
position at year end, as amounts are trued up to actual based on actual numbers submitted at year 
end.  
 
Additional funding is also provided to support special education services. All students who are 
identified to need special education services or settings have an Individualized Education Program 
(IEP), formalized for his or her unique needs. Based on this IEP, the student is categorized into one 
of three levels of service: 0-20% service, 20-60% service, or 60% or more service required and 
provided by the School. For a student receiving less than 20% in services, no additional funding is 
received. For a student receiving services between 20% and 60% and 60% or more services of the 
school day, additional funding per FTE is received. Billing for this support is incorporated into the 
per-pupil invoices and is also settled in the same FTE per-pupil reconciliation process. 
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As the students receive the benefit of these services simultaneously as the School is providing them, 
the School recognizes per-pupil revenue from these services over time. The School believes that 
this method provides a reasonable depiction of the transfer of services over the term of the 
performance obligation based on the services needed to satisfy the obligation. Generally, 
performance obligations satisfied over time relate to students receiving academic or school services. 
The School measures the performance obligation from admission or enrollment into the School to 
the point when the student is discharged or the end of the school year where it is no longer required 
to provide services to the student, which is generally at the time of discharge or the completion of 
the school year. All of these services are bundled and considered a single-performance obligation, 
and as such, the School accounts for these bundled-performance obligations under state and local 
per pupil operating revenue in the statement of activities and recognizes the per-pupil revenue over 
time. 
 
Government Grants 
 
Revenue from federal, state, and local government grants and contracts is recognized by the School 
when qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable to the government, or when required services 
have been provided. 
 
Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities 
 
In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification 
(ASC) 606, contract assets are to be recognized when an entity has the right to receive consideration 
in exchange for goods or services that have been transferred to a customer when that right is 
conditional on something other than the passage of time. The School does not recognize contract 
assets, as the right to receive consideration is unconditional in accordance with the passage of time 
criteria. Also, in accordance with ASC 606, contract liabilities are to be recognized when an entity 
is obligated to transfer goods or services for which consideration has already been received. The 
School does not receive consideration prior to the transfer of goods or services and, therefore, does 
not recognize contract liabilities. 
 
Contributions of Nonfinancial Assets 
 
The School may receive contributed services that are an integral part of its operations. Such services 
are only recorded as contributions of nonfinancial assets, at their fair value, provided the services 
create or enhance nonfinancial assets, require specified skills provided by individuals possessing 
those skills, and typically need to be purchased, if not provided by donation.  
 
The School receives donated space from the New York City Department of Education (NYCDOE) that 
it shares with a New York City public school (Note 5). The donated space will be used for operating, 
general and administrative activities. In valuing the donated space, which is located in Long Island 
City, New York, the School estimated the fair value on the basis of the cost per square foot that is 
currently being paid for a similar space in Long Island City’s real estate market.  
 
Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated on the straight-line method over 
the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of 
the useful life of the asset or the lease term. The School has established a $5,000 threshold above 
which assets are capitalized. Property and equipment acquired with certain government contract 
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funds is recorded as expenses pursuant to the terms of the contract in which the government funding 
source retains ownership of the property. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as 
incurred; major renewals and betterments are capitalized, based on the established threshold. 
Construction in progress is not depreciated until it is placed into service. 
 
Impairment 
 
The School reviews long-lived assets to determine whether there has been any permanent 
impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be 
recoverable. If the sum of the expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying 
amount of the assets, the School recognizes an impairment loss. No impairment losses were 
recognized for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. 
 
Functional Allocation of Expenses 
 
The costs of providing programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis 
and by natural classification in the accompanying statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs 
have been allocated among the respective programs and activities according to the functional 
categories, as follows: 
 
Program Services – This category represents expenses related to general education and special 
education for certain students requiring additional attention and guidance. The underlying 
allocation basis used is salary expense.  
 
Management and General – This category represents expenses related to the overall administration 
and operation of the School that are not specific to any program services or development. The 
underlying allocation basis used is salary expense. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The School is exempt from federal, state and local income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code (the IRC) and, therefore, has made no provision for income taxes in the 
accompanying financial statements. In addition, the School has been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a “private foundation” within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the IRC. 
There was no unrelated business income for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. 
 
Under U.S. GAAP, an organization must recognize the tax benefit associated with tax positions taken 
for tax-return purposes when it is more likely than not that the position will not be sustained upon 
examination by taking a taxing authority. The School does not believe it has taken any material 
uncertain tax positions and, accordingly, it has not recorded any liability for unrecognized tax 
benefits. The School is subject to routine audits by a taxing authority. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
the School was not subject to any examination by a taxing authority.  
 
Investments 
 
Investments are recorded at fair value based upon quoted market prices. Investment return includes 
dividends, interest, and realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments carried at fair 
value. Investment return is recorded as income without donor restrictions in the statements of 
activities.  
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Fair Value Measurements and Fair Value – Definition and Hierarchy 
 
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
 
Accounting standards establish a fair value hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that 
maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring 
the most observable units be used when available. Observable inputs are those that market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources 
independent of the School. Unobservable inputs reflect the School’s assumptions about inputs used 
by market participants at the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy is categorized into three 
levels based on inputs as follows: 
 
Level 1 – Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the School has the ability to access. 
 
Level 2 - Valuation is based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant 
inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly. 
 
Level 3 - Valuation is based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value 
measurement. 
 
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 

Lease Accounting 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Accounting for Leases, which applies a right-of-use 
(ROU) model that requires a lessee to record, for all leases with a lease term of more than payments. 
For leases with a term of 12 months or less, a practical expedient is available whereby a lessee may 
elect, by class of underlying asset, not to recognize an ROU asset or lease liability. At inception, 
lessees must classify all leases as either finance or operating based on five criteria. Balance sheet 
recognition of finance and operating leases is similar, but the pattern of expense recognition in the 
income statement, as well as the effect on the statement of cash flows, differs depending on the 
lease classification. In addition, lessees and lessors are required to provide certain qualitative and 
quantitative disclosures to enable users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing, and 
uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The FASB issued ASU 2020-05, which deferred the 
effective date for the School until annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021. Effective July 
1, 2022, the School adopted this ASU following the modified retrospective method of application, 
see Note 6. 
 
Recently Issued but not yet Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 
 
Financial Instruments – Credit Losses 
 
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326): 
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. The new credit losses standard changes the 
impairment model for most financial assets and certain other instruments. For trade and other 
receivables, contract assets recognized as a result of applying ASC 606, loans and certain other 
instruments, entities will be required to use new forward looking “expected loss” model that 
generally will result in earlier recognition of credit losses than under today’s incurred loss model. 
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ASU 2016-13 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2022. The School is 
currently evaluating the impact of this ASU on its financial statements.  
 
3. Liquidity and Availability of Resources 
 
The School maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general 
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. The School’s management meets monthly 
to address projected cash flows to meet its operational expenditures. In addition, the School invests 
excess cash in U.S. Government Securities and a money market fund, which are highly liquid 
investments. 
 
The School’s financial assets available within one year of the statements of financial position date 
for general expenditures are as follows: 
 
Years ending June 30, 2023 2022 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,392,725 $ 2,319,495 
Cash - restricted 70,000 70,000 
Grants and other receivables 1,439,935 1,157,219 
Investments 1,006,250 1,374,332 

Total Financial Assets 3,908,910 4,921,046 

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditures within  
 one year due to:   
  Restricted by contract (70,000) (70,000) 

Total Financial Assets Available to Management  
 for General Expenditures within One Year $ 3,838,910 $ 4,851,046 
 
4. Investments, at Fair Value 
 
Determination of Fair Values  
 
The valuation methodologies used to determine the fair values of assets and liabilities under the 
“exit price” notion reflect market-participant objectives and are based on the application of the 
fair value hierarchy that prioritizes observable market inputs over unobservable inputs. The School 
measures the fair values of the U.S. Government Securities based on quoted market prices.  
 
The preceding method may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net 
realizable value or reflective of future fair value. Furthermore, although the School believes its 
valuation method is appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different 
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could 
result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date. 
 
The School’s investments are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. 
Due to the level of risks associated with these investments, it is at least reasonably possible that 
changes in the values of these investments will occur in the near term and that such changes could 
materially affect the amounts reported in the statements of financial position and the statements 
of activities. 
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The following tables present by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the School’s investments at 
fair value as of June 30, 2023 and 2022. As required by fair value measurement accounting 
standards, investments are classified in their entirety based upon the lowest level of input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement. The School's assessment of the significance of a particular 
input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect the placement within the 
fair value hierarchy levels. 
 
June 30, 2023      

 Fair Value  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

U.S. Government Securities $ 1,006,250 $ 1,006,250 $  $  
 
June 30, 2022     

 Fair Value  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

U.S. Government Securities $ 1,374,332 $ 1,374,332 $ - $ - 
 
The School’s U.S. Government Securities are scheduled to mature on various dates between 
September 2023 and June 2024.  
 
5. Agreement with School Facility 
 
The School shares space with P.S. 111 Jacob Blackwell, A New York City public school, located at 
37-15 13th Street, Queens, New York 11101. As part of the New York City Chancellor’s Charter School 
Initiative, the NYCDOE has provided this space to the School at no charge. The services provided by 
the NYCDOE to the charter school, such as rent, utilities, custodial services, maintenance, and 
safety services are also provided at no cost.  
 
The School is using a relative valuation model to measure the fair value of the donated space. The 
NYCDOE has not provided a value for the space and there is no lease or agreement in place. In 
applying the valuation model, significant inputs include the total square footage of space occupied 
by the School. Based on such assumptions, the School applies a relative cost per square foot 
calculated using current lease terms from their similar facility in Long Island City.  
 
The School occupies approximately 8,830 square feet at this location. The value of the space and 
related utilities and services allocated to the School calculated by applying the relative valuation 
model is not significant and, therefore, is not recorded in the financial statements. 
 
6. Leases 
 
The School has adopted the provisions of ASC 842, Leases. For leases with initial terms of greater 
than one year (or initially, greater than one year remaining under the lease at the date of the 
adoption of ASC 842), the School records the related right-of-use assets and liabilities at the present 
value of the remaining lease payments to be paid over the life of the related lease. Lease payments 
related to periods subject to renewal options are excluded from the amounts used to determine the 
present value of the remaining lease payments unless the School is reasonably certain to exercise 
the option to extend the lease. The lease require monthly payments of principal and interest at a 
rate averaging from 2.88%. The present value of the lease payments is calculated by utilizing the 
discount rate stated in the lease, when readily determinable. For leases for which a discount rate 
is not readily available, the organization has elected to use the risk-free rate plus a reasonable 
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premium comparative for entities of similar risk. The School has made an accounting policy election 
not to separate lease components from non-lease components in contracts when determining its 
lease payments for all of its asset classes, as permitted by ASC 842. As such, the School accounts 
for the applicable non-lease components together with the related lease components when 
determining the right-of-use assets and liabilities. The School has made an accounting policy 
election not to record leases with an initial term of less than one year as right-of-use assets and 
liabilities in the statements of financial position. 
 
The following tables summarizes information related to lease assets and liability: 
 
Year ended June 30, 2023   
Lease Costs   
Operating lease cost   
Amortization of right-of-use assets  $          568,968  
Interest on lease liabilities              176,680  

Total Lease Cost  $          745,648  
 
Year ended June 30, 2023   

Right-of-use assets and liabilities:   
Operating lease right-of-use assets, net of amortization  $         4,762,100  
Operating lease liabilities  $         5,864,028  

    
Weighted-average remaining lease term – operating leases (years) 10 
Weighted-average discount rate – operating leases (%) 2.88% 

 
The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments, including interest, under the term 
of the leases, together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments, as of June 30, 
2023: 
 
Year ending June 30, 2023   

2024  $            815,779  
2025                835,874  
2026                769,300  
2027                788,532  
2028                808,245  
Thereafter             2,548,005  

Total Minimum Lease Payments             6,565,735  
Less: imputed interest              (701,707) 

Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments  $         5,864,028  
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7. Property and Equipment, Net 
 
Property and equipment, net consist of the following: 
 
June 30,    

 2023 2022 
Estimated Useful 

Lives 

Furniture and fixtures $ 638,671 $ 542,442 7 years 
Musical instruments 6,610 6,610 3 years 
Computers 320,004 320,004 3 years 
Software 35,425 35,425 3 years 
Leasehold improvements 3,485,122 3,479,144 Lesser of the 

useful life 
of the asset 

or the lease term 

 4,485,832 4,383,625  

Less: accumulated depreciation and  
 amortization (2,611,852) (2,347,792)  

Total Property and Equipment, Net $ 1,873,980 $ 2,035,833   
 
Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $264,060 
and $274,692, respectively. 
 
8. Construction in Progress 
 
The School is undergoing construction at its St. Rita location in order to bring the building up to 
code and receive a new certificate of occupancy from the City due to the expansion of the School. 
The School operates on a work-order basis and has not entered into any long-term contracts. At 
June 30, 2023 and 2022, construction in progress was $869,204 and $293,786, respectively.  
 
At June 30, 2022, the projects have been substantially completed. The School will place the 
remaining construction in progress into service upon receipt of the certificate of occupancy from 
the City. 
 
9. Pension Plan 
 
The School participates in the Teachers’ Retirement System of the City of New York (TRS or the 
Plan), which covers principals and teachers. Employees enrolled in the Plan are required to 
contribute up to 6% depending on when they enrolled in the Plan. Employees become vested in the 
School’s contribution to the Plan after ten years of service. The School’s contribution is a rate based 
on actuarial assumptions and methods. During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the School 
used a rate of 11.15% and 10.07%, respectively.  
 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the School incurred pension expense of $903,247 and 
$608,622, respectively, which is included in retirement benefits in the accompanying statements of 
functional expenses. 
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Accounting standards require employers participating in multiemployer plans to provide detailed 
quantitative and qualitative disclosures for these plans. TRS, which is sponsored by the City of New 
York, does not impose an expiration date on participating employers. The zone status is consistent 
with the Pension Protection Act and is for the Plan’s year-end at June 30, 2020. The zone status is 
based on information provided in the TRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which includes 
information from TRS’ actuary and is certified by TRS’ auditor. Among other factors, plans in the 
red zone are generally less than 65% funded, plans in the yellow zone are less than 80% funded and 
plans in the green zone are at least 80% funded. TRS did not report a rehabilitation plan. Information 
related to the Plan is comprised of the following: 
 

Pension Fund 

Plan 
Month/Day 
End Date Zone Status 

Contribution 

2023 2022 

Teachers’ Retirement System 6/30 
Yellow – As of  
June 30, 2021 $ 903,247 $ 608,622 

 
Employees may also participate in a Tax-Deferred Annuity (TDA) Program, which is 
defined-contribution pension plan. Employees may contribute as little as 1% of their salary to the 
TDA Program and as much as their designated Maximum Contribution Rate. This rate is based on 
their salary and the allowable maximum contribution amount the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has 
established for that year. 
 
In July 2014, the School opted to participate in a 403(b) Plan, which is open for salary reduction 
contributions to all employees of the School. There is a base and match contribution given to 
employees who are at least 21 years of age and who have reached the minimum service requirement 
of at least six months of eligibility service at the School. Eligibility service is defined as service in a 
salaried position that does not qualify as a TRS position. The vesting period for the 403(b) Plan is 
based on a vesting table where it takes two years to be partially vested and six years to be fully 
vested. The 403(b) Plan calls for the School to make a base contribution of 3.5% of an eligible 
employee’s salary and match 100% of an eligible employee’s contribution up to 10% of their fiscal 
year salary. The base and matching contributions will not be offered to employees who participate 
in the TRS plan. The School incurred 403(b) Plan expenses of $90,597 and $108,141 for the years 
ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which is included in retirement benefits in the 
accompanying statements of functional expenses. 
 
10. Risk Management  
  
The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School maintains commercial insurance 
to help protect itself from such risks. The School also intends to defend its positions on these 
matters. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, there are no matters for which the School believes the 
ultimate outcome would have a material adverse effect on the School’s financial position.  
 
The School entered into contractual relationships with certain governmental funding sources. The 
governmental agencies may request return of funds as a result of noncompliance by the School, as 
well as additional funds for the use of facilities. The accompanying financial statements make no 
provision for the possible disallowance or refund. The School is of the opinion that such cost 
disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect in the School’s financial statements and will 
record them in the fiscal year they become known.  
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11. Concentration Risks 
 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit risk consist 
principally of cash deposits. Accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up 
to $250,000. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does not believe it is 
exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash accounts. 
 
The School received approximately 90% and 85% of its total revenue from per pupil funding from the 
NYCDOE during each of the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
 
The School’s grants and other receivables consist of two major grantors accounting for 
approximately 36% at June 30, 2023. The School’s grants and other receivables consist of two major 
grantors accounting for approximately 72% at June 30, 2022.  
 
The School’s payables consist of three major vendor accounting for approximately 62% at 
June 30, 2023. The School’s payables consist of one major vendor accounting for approximately 36% 
at June 30, 2022.  
 
12. Commitment and Contingencies 
 
On December 10, 2020, the School entered into a Facilities Transition Agreement (the Agreement) 
with Growing Up Green Charter School (GUG), A New York not-for-profit education corporation 
having an address at 36-49 11th Street, Long Island City, NY 11101. The landlord of the GUG premises 
is the Church. The Agreement is for GUG to transfer its interest in the GUG premises to the School, 
so that the GUG premises can become part of the VOICE Charter School premises all under one lease 
between the School and the Church. The terms of the Agreement state the transfer date of GUG 
premises to the School is expressly conditioned upon GUG’s new facility being completed. The 
transition occurred as of July 1, 2023. 
 
Per the Agreement, the School is obligated to pay a transition fee in the amount of $1,000,000 for 
the improvements GUG made to the GUG premises. On the commencement date of the Agreement, 
the School paid a down payment of $200,000 (the down payment) which is included in prepaid 
expenses and other assets in the accompanying statements of financial position at June 30, 2023 
and 2022. The Down Payment is held in an escrow by GUG’s counsel. The remaining balance of the 
transition fee, amounting to $800,000 is payable, and the Down Payment is to be released upon 
GUG vacating the GUG premises in accordance with the Agreement. As of June 30, 2023 the School 
included the $800,000 in prepaid expenses and other assets in the statements of financial position. 
 
The School is currently in discussion to enter into a new lease with the Church for leasing the GUG 
premises. The lease is for the school building, the immediately adjoining sidewalk and pavement 
area, another building and the associated rear play yard and has a duration of twenty years. As part 
of the lease agreement, the School has paid a security deposit of $105,700 which is included in 
prepaid expenses and other assets in the accompanying statements of financial position at 
June 30, 2023 and 2022. As of July 1,2023, the terms of the agreement have been finalized and the 
School has taken possession of the premises.   
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13. Subsequent Events 
 
The School’s management has performed subsequent event procedures through October 31, 2023, 
which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and there were no 
subsequent events requiring adjustment to the financial statements or disclosures as stated herein. 
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Year ended June 30, 2023     

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through  
 Grantor/Cluster or Program Title 

Federal Assistance 
Listing Number 

Pass-through 
Entity 

Identifying 
Number 

Provided to 
Subrecipients 

Total Federal 
Expenditures 

United States Department of Education     
  Pass-through through the New York  
   State Education Department:     
    Title I Grants to Local Education 
     Agencies (Title I Part A of  
     the ESEA) 84.010 Not Applicable $ - $ 131,406 
    Supporting Effective Instruction  
     State Grants 84.367 Not Applicable - 18,889 
    English Language Acquisition  
     State Grants  84.424 Not Applicable - 19,043 
    Student Support and Academic 
     Enrichment Program 84.424 Not Applicable - 10,000 
    Special Education Cluster (IDEA):     
     Special Education – Grants  
      to States (IDEA, Part B) 84.027 Not Applicable - 124,244 
    Coronavirus Response and Relief  
     Supplemental Appropriations Act,  
     2021 - Emergency Assistance to   
     Non-Public Schools (CRRSA EANS)   
     Program 84.425R Not Applicable - 157,409 
    American Rescue Plan – Elementary 
     and Secondary School Emergency 
     Relief (ARP ESSER) 84.425U Not Applicable - 353,519 
    American Rescue Plan – Elementary 
     and Secondary School Emergency 
     Relief – Homeless Children and  
     Youth 84.425W Not Applicable - 37,106 
    Emergency Connectivity Fund (ECF) 32.009 Not Applicable  48,896 

Total U.S. Department of Education   - 900,512 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards   $ - $ 900,512 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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1. Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal 
award activity of VOICE Charter School under programs of the federal government for the year 
ended June 30, 2023. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the School, it is not 
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the 
School. 
 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following cost principals contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein 
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.  
 
3. Indirect Cost Rate 
 
The School has elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect costs rate allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance.  
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

 
 
The Board of Trustees 
VOICE Charter School 
New York, New York 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of VOICE Charter School (the School), which comprise the School’s statements of 
financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of activities, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2023. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
 
Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on 
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compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of This Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the School’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal 
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
October 31, 2023 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and 
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform 
Guidance 

 
 
The Board of Trustees 
VOICE Charter School 
New York, New York 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited VOICE Charter School (the School) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the School’s major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2023. The School’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
In our opinion, the School complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 
 
We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, 
in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of 
the School’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the 
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements 
applicable to the School’s federal programs. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with 
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and 
express an opinion on the School’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance 
will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material 
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered 
material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the School’s 
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the 
Uniform Guidance, we: 
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the School’s compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the School’s internal control over compliance relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
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internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our 
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to 
be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 
 
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
 
 
October 31, 2023 
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Section I. Summary of Auditor’s Results    

Financial Statements    
Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial  
statements audited were prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP:  Unmodified 
Internal control over financial reporting:    
• Material weakness(es) identified?    Yes  No 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified?   Yes  None reported 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?   Yes  No 

Federal Awards     
Internal control over major federal programs:    
• Material weakness(es) identified?   Yes  No 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified?   Yes  None reported 
    
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal  
programs:  Unmodified 
    
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in  
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?   Yes  No 
   
Identification of major federal programs:   

Assistance Listing Number  
Name of Federal Program  

or Cluster 

84.425R 

 

Coronavirus Response and Relief 
Supplemental Appropriations Act, 

2021 – Emergency Assistance to Non-
Public Schools (CRRSA EANS) Program 

84.425U 

 

American Rescue Plan – Elementary 
and Secondary School Emergency 

Relief (ARP ESSER) 
84.425W 

 

American Rescue Plan – Elementary 
and Secondary School Emergency 

Relief – Homeless Children and Youth 
   
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B  
programs:  $750,000 
    
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?   Yes  No 
    
Section 2. Financial Statement Findings    
There were no findings related to the financial statements that  
are required to be reported, in accordance with generally  
accepted government auditing standards.    
    
Section 3. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs     
There were no findings and questioned costs for federal awards  
(as defined in 2 CFR 200.516(a)) that are required to be reported.    
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VOICE Charter School of New York 

Minutes of October 26, 2022, Board Meeting 

 

Trustees in Attendance: Casey Lamb, Sari Biddelman, Marc Cohen, Sheila Durant, Michael 

Guarini (via Zoom), Rick Grassey (via Zoom), Michael Karp (via 

Zoom), Susheel Kurien, Karen Valbrun (via Zoom).  

 

Absent Trustees:  Chris Doyle.   

 

Other Attendees: Franklin Headley, Diana DiCocco, Patricia Davis. 

 

Date and Time:  October 26, 2022, 4:34 pm to 6:03 pm   

  

Location: VOICE Charter School and Zoom  

 

  

AGENDA ITEMS  

 

1. Approval of Board of Trustee Meeting Minutes  

2. Committees and Task Forces 

3. Old Business 

4. New Business 

 

BOARD DELIBERATIONS 

 

1. Ms. Lamb called the board meeting to order at 4:34 pm. 

 

2. Ms. Lamb reviewed the slightly updated norms, highlighting a new norm focusing on 

seeking and valuing different perspectives.  

 

3. There was an edit made to the attendance of September’s minutes. After a motion duly 

made and seconded, the minutes of the September 22 board meeting were approved. 

 

4. Ms. Lamb shared the news that Robert de Luna has resigned from the board. She and other 

Trustees expressed gratitude for his service, recognizing he was one of the longest serving 

members, and also appreciated his contributions to enrollment specifically.  

 

5. There was discussion about potential reasoning behind recent resignations, including the 

shift of coming back in person since the pandemic, as well as family engagements and 

other commitments. The Nominating/Governance committee will explore this. There was 
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also discussion on the high time commitments required of board members. Ms. Biddleman 

noted that this relates to the topic of restructuring the committees, which will be addressed 

in a future meeting.  

 

6. After a motion duly made and seconded, the board approved a resolution to set the exact 

number of board members to 10.  

 

7. Ms. Lamb reminded the board to fill out the post retreat survey, which includes preferences 

on time and locations of future board meetings. She also reminded the Board that the time 

of the meetings was changed to start earlier so board members could have the ability to 

spend time within the community at the school.  

 

8. During the Principal Report, Mr. Headley spoke about a visit from Mr. Cahn, who started 

Cahn Fellows. He spent a lot of time in classrooms speaking to the students about their 

experience, and the visit went well. Mr. Headley gave an update on the renewal process – 

the hearing has been completed and we received positive support from alumni and the 

principal of PS111. The next steps are for the city to make a recommendation, which is 

likely to happen in February or March. Mr. Headley also spoke about the newly 

reorganized Strategy team (Directors) and Leadership team, which consists of all 

supervisors at VOICE. He mentioned the team is functioning at a high level, completing 

weekly walkthroughs of the school. An area of growth for the team is alignment across the 

divisions. There was discussion about the need for a strong communication strategy that’s 

consistent across the divisions.   

 

9. Mr. Headley gave an update on the school’s work with newcomers and asylum-seeking 

families. VOICE will be hosting a coat drive event for these families on November 4th, 

staffed by VOICE’s social workers and Spanish speaking staff. PA officers will also attend 

to assist with a parent buddies’ program and further support. The event will include coat 

distribution, government ID signups, and laundromat services. VOICE is also working with 

Jacob Riis to provide adult English language classes and with the charter center to have a 

visitor observe the ENL program and see the experiences of the students. There was 

discussion about whether to try to publicize this event or related efforts to highlight the 

good work that VOICE is doing in the community. 

 

10. Patricia Davis shared a PA report. She mentioned that the PA has been able to connect 

families with Hour Children, located across the street from the school, for donations. She 

reflected that the start of the year has been going well, highlighting the sports teams and the 

introduction of PowerSchool for parents. PowerSchool has provided more transparency, 

showing real time data on their child. PowerSchool training has also been provided to 

parents. There has been great enthusiasm from newcomers for the soccer team - overall, 
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they’re looking to have more opportunities for newcomers and as a whole community 

together in music and sports.  

 

11. Mr. Headley shared about a visit from Schola, a vendor VOICE works with for enrollment, 

to film classrooms for a promotional video.  

 

 

12. An update on the conclusion of the TNTP engagement was shared. The task force hasn’t 

met to review the final deliverables, which consist of recommendations, and an 

implementation plan on the school and board level. The next steps are to review a revised 

job description for Mr. Headley and begin strategic planning.   

 

13. Ms. Lamb gave a recap of last month’s productive board retreat. During the retreat, 

committee restructuring was proposed and the need for a multi-year strategic plan was 

discussed. The board is hoping to have a 3-5 year plan put in place by June 2023. The 

board is considering bringing in Pasek Consulting to assist with the strategic plan – they 

also worked with VOICE during the renewal process. They would like to focus on the 

branding of VOICE during this planning, as well, which presents a unique challenge for 

charter schools when trying to recruit teachers and students. There are hopes to launch this 

planning by December or January – it is still to be determined the amount of board and 

Strategy team engagement needed for this process. The Strategy team expressed the hope 

for board members to visit the building during school hours and work together to make this 

a collaborative process.   

 

14. On behalf of the Admissions & Planning Committee, Mr. Cohen reported that enrollment is 

ahead of the goal for this year, largely due to the influx of newcomers that have enrolled in 

VOICE this Fall. When reviewing the enrollment dashboard, the board discussed the 

amount of students who did not return from the last year’s last day of school, resulting in 

12% not returning. This is a typical percentage year to year. Mr. Cohen also shared that he 

has been accumulating information on the PreK process. Mr. Cohen spoke to a school in 

Washington Heights that was just approved for PreK – they shared insights on the quantity 

of students in their program and the amount of space needed..  

 

15. Mr. Headley gave an update on facilities. As of now, grades 3-5 will most likely move to 

the DiMarco building, with grades 6-8 staying in Lena Horne campus. The architects and 

engineers are currently working on a plan to connect the two buildings with a secure 

egress. The anticipated timeline has VOICE formally occupying the new space by  summer 

2023.  

 

16. On behalf of the Finance Committee, Mr. Grassey & Mr. Cohen noted positive trends in 

the September financials thanks to meeting enrollment targets. SPED numbers are lower  
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VOICE Charter School of New York 
Minutes of November 16, 2022, Board Meeting 
 
Trustees in Attendance: Casey Lamb, Sari Biddelman (via Zoom), Marc Cohen, Chris Doyle, 

Rick Grassey (via Zoom), Michael Karp (via Zoom). 
 
Absent Trustees:  Sheila Durant, Susheel Kurien, Karen Valbrun, Michael Guarini  
 
Other Attendees: Franklin Headley, Diana DiCocco, Patricia Davis, Braceson 

Pennyfeather. 
 
Date and Time:  November 16, 2022, 4:40 pm to 5:36 pm   
  
Location: VOICE Charter School and Zoom  
 
  
AGENDA ITEMS  
 

1. Approval of Board of Trustee Meeting Minutes  
2. Committees and Task Forces 
3. Old Business 
4. New Business 

 
BOARD DELIBERATIONS 
 

1. Ms. Lamb called the board meeting to order at 4:40 pm. 
 

2. Ms. Lamb started the meeting by reviewing the norms and reading the mission aloud.  
 

3. After a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes of the October 26 board meeting were 
approved. 
 

4. PA co-chair, Patricia Davis, shared a Parent Report. The PA officers had a meeting with 
parents on Monday, where they gave feedback on the involvement of the PA. They also 
would like to have an in-person meeting at the school once a month. They are figuring out 
how to further connect with newcomer families at VOICE. One of the biggest challenges 
newcomer families are facing are applying for jobs – the PA officers brainstormed how to 
support families with this during their officers meeting with Mr. Headley. One idea they 
are exploring is a buddy program for new families. Ms. Davis’ son, Braceson Pennyfeather, 
was also present. Mr. Pennyfeather told us about his experience in the 6th grade so far this 
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year, discussing his likes and hobbies, his most recent track meet, and what he is learning 
in his Social Studies class.  

 
5. During the Principal Report, Mr. Headley spoke about how the school is navigating 

enrollment volatility, highlighting some of the proactive steps the staff is taking to forge 
partnerships in the community, and to identify and retain new families.  Some partnerships 
discussed were with a food bank and a local soccer program. 
 

6. Mr. Headley also previewed the upcoming December concerts and Parade of Nations 
event, potentially occurring in January. VOICE also hosted their first night of adult English 
language classes for newcomer families – 12 people were in attendance for the first class. 
Jacob Riis provided the instructor and classes take place after school 3 days a week, with 
childcare provided in the office. Mr. Headley gave an update on the support fair VOICE 
hosted for the newcomer families. The families enjoyed the event and it was great to see 
the school come together. The event included a coat and clothing drive, voucher 
distribution for laundromat services, Kids Rise sign-ups, and discussions with the Social 
Work team for further needs assessments.  
 

7. Mr. Headley shared a summary from a visit from The Charter Center’s Collaborative to 
observe the English for Non-native Learners program and give feedback. One key 
takeaway from the visit was a lot of engagement and love and joy in the classrooms. The 
areas of growth were around planning with every students’ needs in mind. The next steps 
will be to explore tailored PD sessions with The Collaborative.  When VOICE welcomed 
70 families who had recently arrived in the U.S., at first it seemed none of the children 
spoke English. However, in a few months that has shifted as some students have become 
more comfortable to demonstrate pre-existing English skills and others have shown 
increased proficiency in English. 
 

8. Mr. Kurien joined Mr. Headley and the architect during a walkthrough of the new building 
VOICE will be occupying next school year. During the walkthrough, they identified an 
egress they would like to build between the two buildings and the architect provided 
options. They will be creating a list of things that are needed before we occupy the space 
next fall.    

 
9. Mr. Headley previewed that the Student Discipline Code has been updated in response to 

new State laws related to due process and rules about  who can conduct suspension 
hearings. The new Code will be shared with the EAC committee before being presented to 
the Board. There was discussion around if students can understand the discipline code and 
if there’s language around bullying on social media or student disputes that occur outside 
of school grounds.    
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10. Ms. Lamb gave updates from the retreat feedback survey. The board will move forward 
with consolidating and updating committees. The revised Finance, Governance, and EAC 
committees will meet before the December board meeting to look at their charters. 
Additionally, she shared that KPIs are also almost finalized and will be reviewed by the 
new committees.  
 

11. The TNTP task force met on Monday to review final reports. They updated a job 
description for Mr. Headley and will be meeting with the HR Manager and Mr. Headley to 
align on the evaluation process and final tweaks to the job description. This will be brought 
to the board in December. The remaining action items on TNTP’s implementation plan 
included finalizing KPIs, translating the data dashboard on a board level, and using 
information to update and norm the teacher evaluation process across the three divisions.  
 

12. Mr. Headley reported on VOICE’s Strategy team retreat that occurred last Friday. They 
spent time looking at the current state and progress towards goals. For strategic planning 
recommendations, Ms. Lamb and Mr. Karp have been talking to consultants and 
recommendations sent by the Charter Center, with a goal of launching a process in early 
2023. The school-based Strategy team will drive this process, working closely with a small 
board task force who will provide guidance.  
 

13. On behalf of the Admissions & Planning Committee, Mr. Cohen reported that there has 
only been a small change in students from last month to this month. There was a projection 
of losing 13-14 students this month, but that hasn’t happened yet. The students that have 
been leaving are a mix of newcomer families that have relocated and families enrolling in 
district schools. VOICE has seen students return to the school after leaving for district 
schools, as well.   

 
14. On behalf of the Finance Committee, Mr. Grassey reviewed the finances and noted budget 

items that drive financial success. The influx of new students has been helpful when 
looking at finances and we’re hopeful we can maintain a good number. It will be an 
ongoing discussion on balancing the budget if we lose students. Overall, we were in a good 
financial position last month, but it dropped this month, which is being closely monitored. 
Director of Finance, Thomas Ficeto, will create a report for the committee on the 
seasonality spend on some of the items causing the drop.    

 
15. Ms. Lamb previewed agenda items for the December board meeting, including the new ED 

JD, KPIs, committee charters, PreK discussions, and strategic planning. 
 

16. Ms. Lamb adjourned the meeting and went into executive session at 5:36 pm.  
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      Casey Lamb, President  
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VOICE Charter School of New York 

Minutes of December 21, 2022, Board Meeting 

 

Trustees in Attendance: Casey Lamb (Zoom), Sari Biddelman (Zoom), Sheila Durant 

(Zoom), Michael Guarini (Zoom), Rick Grassey (Zoom), Susheel 

Kurien (Zoom), Karen Valbrun (Zoom). 

 

Absent Trustees:  Marc Cohen, Chris Doyle, Michael Karp.   

 

Other Attendees: Franklin Headley, Diana DiCocco, Juan Vasquez. 

 

Date and Time:  December 21, 2022, 4:40 pm to 5:28 pm   

  

Location: Zoom  

 

  

AGENDA ITEMS  

 

1. Approval of Board of Trustee Meeting Minutes  

2. Committees and Task Forces 

3. Old Business 

4. New Business 

 

BOARD DELIBERATIONS 

 

1. Ms. Lamb called the board meeting to order at 4:40 pm. 

 

2. Ms. Lamb started the meeting by reviewing the norms and reading the mission aloud.  

 

3. After a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes of the November 16 board meeting 

were approved. 

 

4. PA co-chair, Juan Vasquez, shared a Parent Report. The PA officers continue to be in 

communication with VOICE about programs and events. The PA wasn’t able to have a 

meeting with the parents this month, but they have been making sure students are 

participating in the winter concert events. Overall, they would like to continue growing and 

getting parents involved. They are also continuing their efforts to schedule more in-person 

meetings with parents and pushing for more in-person events involving parents.   
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5. During the Principal Report, Mr. Headley gave an update on enrollment, which have 

hovering around the same numbers. We are expecting some newcomer families to move 

while also expecting more families to arrive on buses coming to NY. Mr. Headley shared 

his latest thinking about a Pre-K feeder, and is exploring hosting a partner program at 

VOICE. The PreK task force will meet to discuss in January. Mr. Headley expressed 

excitement about VOICE’s Leadership team, made up of all the school’s supervisors. The 

team has been norming on teacher observation expectations and conducting formal 

observations. The midyear evaluations for teachers will begin in January.  

 

6. Mr. Headley notified the board that the first winter concerts went very well. Mr. Kurien 

attended one concert and said it was a great evening and was wonderful to hear the children 

sing and return to the stage after three years. He congratulated the music department and 

complimented them on the choice of repertoire.  

 

7. During the President Report, Ms. Lamb gave updates about the new committee structures. 

They will be moving forward with the updated committees of Finance, Governance, and 

EAC. Each committee will review their committee’s charter. The Governance committee 

charter has already been circulated, outlining their goals for a succession plan, building a 

pipeline for board candidates, and evaluating trustees up for renewal. Finance and EAC 

committees are still in the process of meeting and reviewing their charters. The charters 

will give the board a better understanding of purpose and how they will work together.   

 

8. The KPIs have been circulated to the board and shared with each of the committees. The 

board is looking to add a KPI for music and hoping to have any update in January. We will 

be using iReady for achievement and growth targets, which are computer-based 

assessments from the last few years developed by an external organization. Among other 

things, iReady is intended to be a predictor for performance in NYS exams. EAC 

committee will be looking at this data. The goal for student satisfaction will be measured 

with a survey question, with a goal of receiving 80% response from students saying they 

feel they belong in the VOICE community. Finance’s goal is to end the year with a surplus 

of 1% and to meet targets for enrollment and application numbers.  

 

9. The board is looking to engage with a consultant to develop a strategic plan for VOICE. 

Mr. Karp has been having initial conversations with strategy consultants and has narrowed 

down the search to two firms. Ms. Lamb will make connections to Mr. Headley and work 

on getting full proposals from each firm to help make a final decision.  

 

10. Ms. Lamb gave an update on the conclusion of the TNTP engagement. Following the 

engagement, an updated job description for Mr. Headley has been developed. The board 

looked at different examples from other schools with similar structures. After a motion 

duly made and seconded, the updated job description was approved. The board is also 
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looking to streamline and improve Mr. Headley’s evaluation process and align with the 

directors’ evaluation process.   

 

11. On behalf of the Finance Committee, Mr. Grassey went through the month’s finances and 

reported no significant changes. Enrollment hasn’t significantly changed since last month. 

Attrition is anticipated after the winter break, in alignment with past years, but as Mr. 

Headley mentioned, they are expecting new buses with migrant families to bring new 

students.    

 

12. Academically, VOICE is seeing positive increases in Middle School Math scores. Before 

the pandemic, students usually scored better in Math. The pandemic negatively influenced 

this trend, but there is evidence that we are beginning to reverse that.  

 

13. The board asked about the food service in the cafeteria since the DOE has been prioritizing 

food quality/nutrition. Mr. Headley explained NYC offices provide food to all schools in 

the district and we have seen the food get better with options. There has also been more of 

an effort for plant-based foods. VOICE has a good relationship with the food service city 

office.   

 

14. Ms. Lamb adjourned the meeting and went into executive session at 5:28 pm.  

 

 

    
   

      Casey Lamb, President  
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VOICE Charter School of New York 

Minutes of January 25, 2023, Board Meeting 

 

Trustees in Attendance: Casey Lamb (via Zoom), Sari Biddelman, Marc Cohen, Sheila 

Durant (via Zoom), Michael Guarini (via Zoom), Michael Karp (via 

Zoom), Susheel Kurien, Karen Valbrun (via Zoom). 

 

Absent Trustees:  Chris Doyle, Rick Grassey.   

 

Other Attendees: Franklin Headley, Diana DiCocco. 

 

Date and Time:  January 25, 2023, 4:32 pm to 6:07 pm   

  

Location: VOICE Charter School & Zoom  

 

  

AGENDA ITEMS  

 

1. Approval of Board of Trustee Meeting Minutes  

2. Committees and Task Forces 

3. Old Business 

4. New Business 

 

BOARD DELIBERATIONS 

 

1. Ms. Lamb called the board meeting to order at 4:32 pm. 

 

2. Ms. Lamb started the meeting by reviewing the norms and reading the mission aloud.  

 

3. After a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes of the December 21 board meeting 

were approved. 

 

4. During the Principal Report, Mr. Headley gave an update on the PA and their desire to be 

more involved with events. He mentioned he will be holding a meeting with all parents in 

the coming weeks. Mr. Headley shared an article featuring VOICE in NY1. A reporter was 

outside the building interviewing parents about the mayor’s announcement to provide 

incentives to schools for accepting newcomer families. Mr. Headley invited the reporter 

inside and gave an interview, discussing that the children are gifts to the school, and they 

need resources.  
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Mr. Headley gave an update on enrollment, stating there were expected turnovers due to 

families moving out of state. In the first few days back from holiday break, more than 60 

new students registered to VOICE, mostly families coming from Ecuador. A majority of 

these students are in Grades 3-5 and most are living in the surrounding hotels.  

 

5. During the facilities update, Mr. Headley notified the board that the architect working on 

the DiMarco building is coming back next week for a series of meetings. One of the 

projects they are working on is creating a larger music room for choir classes.  

 

6. Mr. Headley also gave an update on the Music team’s assessment tool they will be using 

for student metrics – the Music team will be meeting to finalize this tool. Mr. Kurien met 

with a few members of the Music team and discussed current staffing and their reflections 

on the winter concerts. The Music team announced the spring musical this year will be 

Shrek.  

 

7. Mid-year evaluations have started for teachers and the Leadership team, consisting of 

VOICE deans and directors, has normed on teacher observations to include in the 

evaluation process, which includes observations,  self-reflections, and supervisor’s 

evaluations all using common tools. After the mid-year evaluations are complete, offer 

letters will be distributed in March.  

 

8. During the President Report, Ms. Lamb gave an update on the data dashboard that has now 

been developed. We are making progress and getting close to a useful tool for the board to 

review monthly. Ms. Lamb also gave an update on the call with a Pre-k consultant. During 

this call, they discussed a few different options, including applying for our own Pre-k 

program or partnering with an existing Pre-k. They explored the pros and cons of each 

option and discussed doing research into the community needs for a Pre-k.  

 

9. The board is looking to engage with a consultant to develop a strategic plan for VOICE. 

Mr. Headley has met two firms that board members vetted and who submitted proposals, 

and the school will move forward with Ford Research & Solutions. Jim Ford was 

recommended by the CEO of NYC Charter Center and has experience doing strategic 

planning with charter schools. He is ready to kick-off the project and is aiming to have an 

end product by June. The hope for the engagement is to receive an action plan from the 

needs assessments that have already been conducted through previous engagements. This 

engagement will focus on operationalizing a 3-5 year strategic plan. Ms. Lamb agreed to 

circulate the proposal following the meeting. Ms. Lamb and Mr. Karp will be involved to 

represent the board during this process.  
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10. On behalf of the Finance Committee, Ms. Lamb went through the month’s finances and 

reported no significant changes. Enrollment is closer to the target than last year, and we are 

more on track with the budget due to the increase in enrollment.  The updated Finance 

Committee charter has also been circulated to the board. Mr. Cohen also highlighted a 

recommendation from the committee to analyze our banking patterns more closely to 

ensure returns on investment.  

 

11. The EAC Committee charter has been circulated to the board. Ms. Biddelman discussed the 

updated committee charter and explained they wanted to be clear with their language that 

the committee is here to support the school, students, teachers, and directors in meeting the 

goals. The EAC committee will finalize monthly meeting times and have more of an update 

during next month’s meeting.  

 

 

12. On behalf of the Governance committee, Ms. Lamb reviewed the set of trustee agreements, 

outlining the board members’ set of commitments. These agreements were introduced at 

the Fall retreat and have been reviewed by the committee. Ms. Lamb indicated that board 

members will be expected to sign the commitments annually, along with financial 

disclosures; for this year, they will be circulated separately. The goal of having a written 

agreement is to be more thoughtful, structured, and reflective. The Governance committee 

will also start having one on one conversations with each member to think about how they 

can tap into their network for potential board member recruitment. During the next board 

meeting, there will be a group brainstorm on recommendations for nominating processes 

and outreach strategies.    

 

13. Dr. Valbrun reminded the board to be mindful of how we approach one another as we talk 

about the work and communicate, in alignment with our board norms. 

 

 

14. Ms. Lamb adjourned the meeting at 6:07 pm.  

 

 

    
   

      Casey Lamb, President  
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VOICE Charter School of New York 
Minutes of May 24, 2023, Board Meeting 
 
Trustees in Attendance: Casey Lamb (via Zoom), Marc Cohen (via Zoom), Chris Doyle (via 

Zoom), Michael Guarini (via Zoom), Michael Karp (via Zoom), 
Susheel Kurien (via Zoom), Rick Grassey (via Zoom).  

 
Absent Trustees:  Sari Biddelman, Sheila Durant, Sachin Gujral, Karen Valbrun.   
 
Other Attendees: Franklin Headley (via Zoom), Diana DiCocco (via Zoom) 
 
Date and Time:  May 24, 2023, 4:40 pm to 5:44 pm   
  
Location: Zoom  
 
  
AGENDA ITEMS  
 

1. Approval of Board of Trustee Meeting Minutes  
2. Committees and Task Forces 
3. Old Business 
4. New Business 

 
BOARD DELIBERATIONS 
 

1. Ms. Lamb called the board meeting to order at 4:40 pm. 
 

2. Ms. Lamb started the meeting by reviewing the norms and reading the mission aloud.  
 

3. After a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes of the April 25 board meeting were 
approved. 

 
4. Mr. Headley gave an update from his latest parent meeting with the PA officers. They 

discussed elections for the upcoming school year and there is excitement around finding 
new parents to run for office. These parent meetings have been helpful to get feedback 
about parents’ questions and concerns following incidents. During the meeting, they also 
discussed organizing a talent showcase for the students and getting parents more involved 
with the event.   
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5. During the Principal’s report, Mr. Headley discussed the school’s latest visit to the 
DiMarco building while Growing Up Green’s students weren’t in attendance. This was the 
first time the staff had been given a tour of the building and the teachers showed 
enthusiasm for the new space. There will be extensive surveys given out to the staff to 
receive their feedback.  
 

6. Regarding academics, Mr. Headley and the school directors will be presenting a proposal 
for a new published curriculum, MyView, to the EAC committee in the coming days. Once 
the EAC committee has reviewed, the curriculum will be presented to the board for review. 
If approved, the curriculum will go into a pilot year. School leadership expressed 
excitement about the plan to work with consultants as part of the academic improvement 
plan and showed appreciation for the board’s support for this, which was discussed during 
the retreat.  
 

7. Mr. Headley gave an update on how state testing went. He explained that the ELA tests 
have changed, and a new baseline is being established. The school will receive the item 
skills analysis in June, which provides a breakdown of individual skills. The Science test is 
also occurring this week and the Regents will occur in June.  
 

8. There are many school events upcoming in June, including spring concerts, 8th grade 
graduation, and hiring days. The hiring days and incentive referral program are yielding 
some positive results.  
 

9. In terms of enrollment, VOICE has registered a good number of children over the last 
several days. This wave of enrollment has mostly been in grades K-2, which differs from 
previous trends. VOICE currently enrolled at 793.  
 

10. During the President’s report, Ms. Lamb thanked everyone for joining the May retreat. The 
board retreat allowed for productive conversations. She also highlighted work from the 
beginning of the strategic planning process with Jim Ford to develop an impact statement. 
This statement will be circulated to the board for feedback. 
 

11. Ms. Lamb also gave an update on Mr. Headley’s mid-year evaluation. Ms. Lamb and Mr. 
Doyle will be conducting his evaluation conversation at the end of the week. Ms. Lamb and 
Mr. Doyle also had a conversation with a potential literacy consultant, Dr. Gravity 
Goldberg.  
 

12. Ms. Lamb notified the board that the NY Board of Regents will approve VOICE’s renewal 
agreement at the June 12th meeting, just before the next board meeting.        
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13. On behalf of the Finance Committee, Mr. Cohen went through the month’s finances, which 
followed recent trends. He noted a change in the retirement plan for teachers and changes 
in the money market.  
 

14. The committee also highlighted elements of the draft budget for FY24, which includes a 
proposed deficit. This recommendation is being made to enable aggressive efforts to 
improve academic outcomes, particularly in literacy. The additional spending will support 
coaching, consultants, training, and a new curriculum. The Finance Committee indicated 
that they will be monitoring both academic improvement and facilities spending over the 
next year. This will also be previewed at the next committee meeting. The budget will be 
presented for approval at the next board meeting in June. Board members were encouraged 
to attend the next Finance committee meeting to discuss the budget in detail. 
 

15. Mr. Cohen also summarized enrollment updates, including projections for next year, which 
may exceed 810 students. Mr. Cohen also highlighted that despite low enrollment in 
kindergarten, more students are enrolling in 1st grade. The committee discussed reasons 
why this might be happening. 

 
16. On behalf of the Governance committee, Ms. Lamb shared that Mr. Gujral’s application to 

VOICE’s authorizer has been approved, and he is now a full board member. VOICE was 
also approved to be part of BoardLead’s new cohort, which may yield new candidates in 
the coming months. Members will join a kick-off call in early June and Mr. Doyle will 
coordinate interviews with candidates. The board is also continuing to recommend 
potential candidates and reach out to those who are interested. Ms. Lamb reminded the 
board of the brainstorming activity from March and encouraged members to continue to 
engage their networks and affiliations in an effort to expand and diversify the board.  
 

17. The Education Accountability Committee did not meet, but will soon be discussing 
proposed curriculum changes.  
 

18. Ms. Lamb reminded everyone that the next meeting, on June 14, is the annual meeting, and 
will include a number of voting matters, including the budget, school calendar, handbook 
changes, and officer elections. Board members interested in officer roles, particularly the 
secretary role, were encouraged to reach out to the Governance Committee.  

 
19. Ms. Lamb adjourned the meeting at 5:44 pm. 

 
   

      Susheel Kurien, Secretary    
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VOICE Charter School of New York 
Minutes of June 14, 2023, Board Meeting 
 
Trustees in Attendance: Marc Cohen, Chris Doyle, Sheila Durant, Michael Guarini, Sachin 

Gujral, Michael Karp (via Zoom), Susheel Kurien (via Zoom), Rick 
Grassey (via Zoom).  

 
Absent Trustees:  Sari Biddelman, Casey Lamb, Karen Valbrun.   
 
Other Attendees: Franklin Headley, Diana DiCocco, Jim Ford 
 
Date and Time:  June 14, 2023, 4:45 pm to 7:14 pm   
  
Location: VOICE Charter School & Zoom  
 
  
AGENDA ITEMS  
 

1. Approval of Board of Trustee Meeting Minutes  
2. Committees and Task Forces 
3. Old Business 
4. New Business 

 
BOARD DELIBERATIONS 
 

1. Mr. Doyle called the board meeting to order at 4:45 pm. 
 

2. Mr. Doyle started the meeting by reviewing the norms and reading the mission aloud.  
 

3. After a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes of the May 24 board meeting were 
approved. 

 
4. During the Principal’s report, Mr. Headley gave an update on the facilities timeline for the 

DiMarco building. He also gave an academic update, stating the state continues to change 
expectations for Reading and Math, which causes the published curriculum to change 
continuously. Charter schools are able to operate more independently than city schools 
when it comes to choosing published curriculum. The VOICE staff have also expressed an 
interest in changing the published curriculum. The next step would be for the board to vote 
on a pilot year. VOICE also received input from the literacy consultant, Gravity Goldberg.   
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5. After a motion duly made and seconded, the pilot program of the new published curriculum 

for school year 23-24 was approved. After a motion duly made and seconded, the decision 
to submit the decision to the DOE of an official new published curriculum in school year 
24-25 was approved.   
 

6. Regarding the literacy consultant, Gravity Goldberg and her team have been hired to train 
and coach teachers on implementing the new materials. The core of their work will be 
coaching by observing teachers, debriefing with them, showing them new skills, and 
providing hands-on training into their practice. The scope of their services is pretty broad 
and will include assistance with the new curriculum. A more detailed scope will be part of 
the deep planning work done in July.   
 

7. In order to move scores in year, VOICE will also be implementing test prep, something 
they haven’t done in previous years. Since testing will be moving to a computer-based 
format, VOICE will also have more focus on supporting familiarity of Chromebooks.  
 

8. Mr. Headley gave an update on the school’s decision to move to remote days last week due 
to the city air quality warnings. The city had scheduled PD days but switched to remote PD 
days for the staff. VOICE followed the city’s league, as they would do for snow days. Due 
to this, VOICE postponed the Middle School spring concert – this is the first time VOICE 
has scheduled two concerts (Grades 3-5 and Middle School) on one night. The remainder 
of the school year is busy, with an event happening almost every evening. There will also 
be a staff appreciation event on the last end of year PD day.  
 

9. In terms of enrollment, the report remains robust. VOICE currently has 805 students in the 
building, with our ceiling being 810 students. VOICE had 150 newcomers students coming 
through the school, becoming a welcome center for the families. Mr. Headley shared that 
proceeding the regents meeting, Regents Chin called and asked to share highlights of 
VOICE’s work with newcomer families. During the regents meeting, Regent Chin spoke on 
behalf of VOICE, laying groundwork for the next renewal.  
 

10. Mr. Headley shared a summary of the June regents meeting where VOICE’s renewal was 
discussed. The renewal recommendation of 3-years from the DOE was approved – data 
showed test scores went down, which VOICE is responding to with their academic 
improvement plans.  
 

11. A bill on class size was approved, which could affect VOICE directly due to financing 
smaller class sizes.   
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12. Jim Ford gave an update on the strategic planning process, stating there is an established 
target date to complete the strategic plan by June 30th. There are five action plans that have 
been developed – academic, organization effectiveness, accountability, communication, 
and leadership and governance succession. The strategic plan and action plans will be sent 
to board members to review during July’s board meeting. During the July meeting, each 
action plan will be assigned an overall goal, annual benchmarks, execution strategies, 
timelines for completion, measures of progress, and status updates. There is also a plan to 
create a more robust data dashboard system.  

 
13. On behalf of the Finance Committee, Mr. Cohen went through the month’s finances and 

reported no changes from last month. We are on pace to meet the projected surplus next 
month. Mr. Cohen also gave an update on the TRS budget for the retirement plan, as well 
as our cash position, bond profile, and the money market.  

 
14. The committee also highlighted elements of the projected budget for FY24, which includes 

allocations to academic improvement. The budget is larger, and it was an impressive 
endeavor to balance it. There has also been an increase in medical premiums and TRS 
continues to be a variable. The healthcare rates are shifting to people’s behaviors and with 
Cigna, there is not much cost to go out of network. There was discussion about the new 
UFT contract for union teachers and how that might affect the city’s teacher pay, as well as 
our funding model used for teacher salaries.    
 

15. The capital plan for the DiMarco building was circulated to the board for review. Patrick 
Ford has been project managing the construction, including the creation of detailed floor 
plans using the teachers and the school director’s input. The one-pager details the phases of 
construction, including the creation of a laundry room for parents. There’s work being done 
to make the kitchen space usable, with input from SchoolsFood. The covered connector for 
the two buildings is also in the works but is not expected to be done until phase 2. After 
discussion, the Board recommended that the school engage a qualified professional General 
Contractor with experience in such projects to oversee and project manage phase 3 of the 
project.  After a motion duly made and seconded, the plan and costs of phases 1 and 2 of 
the capital project plan were approved.  
 

16. Regarding the data dashboard, it was confirmed the school has been using an internal 
dashboard, but the board hasn’t had a dashboard for years. The school has developed an 
internal dashboard for the board level, but is now looking for an external person to help 
with the process. Mr. Ford said he has a recommendation and Mr. Headley mentioned he 
spoke to a consultant, Dillon Prime, about these potential services. This dashboard work 
would be integrated with a scope of work to help bridge the communication between board 
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and management. A consultant in this area would help strengthen the relationship between 
the board and management by assisting with reporting, managing up to the board, and 
building capacity for a natural flow of information.  
 

17. The 23-24 school calendar was circulated to board members for review. The calendar 
roughly follows the DOE calendar and has the same requirement as city and state schools 
to have 180 school days. The first day of instruction is the Tuesday after Labor Day and 
more half days have been included than in previous years to provide more PD training to 
staff during the year. It was also noted that our calendar doesn’t honor all the religious 
holidays – while children and staff are excused on those days, it becomes disruptive for 
children with high needs when the school is closed. It also allows us to have two weeks off 
around the New Year so families can travel to their home countries for an extended period 
of time. Remote learning was also mentioned since this has taken over the snow days, one 
of the great pleasures of youth. During the pandemic, VOICE modified live instruction 
during snow days so children could go out and play in the snow. After a motion duly made 
and seconded, the 23-24 school calendar was approved. 
 

18. The 23-24 board meeting calendar was circulated to the board members. The meeting dates 
are scheduled around when financial data for the board will be ready, as well as around 
school vacations. The board meeting dates can be modified as needed. There were 
questions about the location requirement of the board meetings and the reasoning for 
making the board meetings earlier at 4:30 pm. The board meetings mostly met at the school 
in recent years at an early start time to encourage board members to visit the school while 
class was in session, as well as make it more convenient for parents to attend. The board 
meeting calendar was approved.  
 

19. A summary of employee handbook changes was circulated to the board members. The PTO 
policy has changed to being earned along the way, instead of frontloading sick days. The 
frontloaded sick days worked well during the pandemic, but a change in employee behavior 
has shifted the change back to earning. Employees will be allowed to borrow days if 
needed. This policy is also consistent with the DOE. Another change includes how the days 
are rounded for accounting purposes. This will help resolve chronic lateness that wasn’t 
having any financial impact and make the system more equitable. There are two parts of 
the COVID policy that will remain, including the requirement of vaccination and the 
booster requirement. After a motion duly made and seconded, the handbook changes were 
approved.  

 
20. On behalf of the Governance committee, Mr. Doyle mentioned an onboarding packet has 

been created and a kick-off for BoardLead occurred. BoardLead can match VOICE with 
potential board members and source people for us to interview. The board is also 
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continuing the push to reach out to their networks and recommend potential candidates. Mr. 
Headley also mentioned their search for a new lobbyist who can help us engrain in the 
community.  
 

21. The following trustees were up for renewal – Mr. Doyle, Ms. Durant, and Mr. Kurien. Ms. 
Lamb conducted interviews and recommended voting for a three-year term. After a motion 
duly made and seconded, the term reelection of these three trustees was approved.   
 

22. The board voted on the slate of officers, which included Mr. Doyle as Chairman, Ms. 
Durant as Vice Chair, Mr. Grassey as Treasurer, and Mr. Kurien as Secretary. After a 
motion duly made and seconded, the officer slate was approved.  

 
23. Mr. Doyle adjourned the meeting at 7:14 pm. 

 
   

      Susheel Kurien, Secretary   














































